
 

 
 

 
 
To: Chair and Members of the Barrow in Furness Local Area Planning 

Committee 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 
 
 
Dear Member 
 
BARROW IN FURNESS LOCAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Barrow in Furness Local Area Planning Committee will be held as 
follows: 
 
Date:  Tuesday, 19 December 2023  
Time:  10.00 am 
Venue: Drawing Room, Barrow Town Hall,  
 

 

 
Linda Jones 
Chief Legal and Monitoring Officer 
Westmorland and Furness Council 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Sandra Kemsley 
Direct Line:  01229 876336 
Email:  Sandra.Kemsley@westmorlandandfurness.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

1



 

 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Cllr T Assouad 
Cllr F Cassidy 
Cllr D Edwards 
Cllr L Hall 

Cllr A Husband (Chair) 
Cllr B McEwan (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr J Murphy 
Cllr D Taylor  

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the Westmorland and Furness 
website 
 
https://westmorlandandfurness.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=263 
 
 

2

https://westmorlandandfurness.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=263


 

 
A G E N D A 

  
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
   
  
2.   Membership 

 
To receive details of any changes in membership. 
   
  
3.   Declarations of Interest/Dispensations 

 
To receive declarations of interest by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda, and to consider any dispensations. 
  
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency, to 
declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests which they 
have already declared in the Register, as well as any other registrable or other interests. 
   
  
4.   Exclusion of Press and Public 

 
To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda. 
   
  
5.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

 
To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 28th November, 2023 (copy 
enclosed) 

  (Pages 5 - 24) 
  
6.   Public Participation 

 
Any Member of the public who wishes to make representations relating to an item on the 
agenda for this meeting should apply to do so no later than 0:01am (one minute past 
midnight) three working days before the date of the meeting.  Anyone wishing to make 
representations to this meeting should contact the officer named on the front of the 
agenda, providing a written summary of the issues they intend to raise 
   
  
7.   Planning Application No. B20/2023/0464 175-177 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-

Furness 
 

Proposed conversion of commercial premises (use class E(a)) to 12 no. bedroom 
HMO (Sui-Generis) at first and second floors and welfare facilities at ground floor. 
Raising the roof height to the rear of the property by 1 metre and remodel of large 
existing ground floor shop unit to two smaller shop units and associated external 
alterations (amended description) at 175-177 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness.  
  

   (Pages 25 - 56) 
 

3



 

  
8.   Appeal Decision - 52 Paradise Street, Barrow-in-Furness 

 
To note the appeal decision for 52 Paradise Street, Barrow-in-Furness from the Planning 
Inspectorate. 

  (Pages 57 - 94) 
 

  
9.   Presentation by Alistair Blackshaw on Biodiversity Net Gain 

 
All Members are requested to stay for the presentation. 
   
  
10.   Urgent Items 

 
To consider any urgent items of business. 
   
  

4



 

 

 
WESTMORLAND AND FURNESS COUNCIL BARROW IN FURNESS 

LOCAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Barrow in Furness Local Area Planning Committee 
held on Tuesday, 28 November 2023 at 10.00 am in the Drawing Room, Barrow 
Town Hall 
  
 
PRESENT: 
 
Cllr T Assouad 
Cllr F Cassidy 
Cllr L Hall 
Cllr A Husband (Chair) 
Cllr B McEwan (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr J Murphy 
Cllr N Phillips 
Cllr D Taylor 
 
Officers in attendance: 
Jason Hipkiss (Development Services Manager), Andrew Willison-Holt (Principal 
Planning Officer) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer). 
 
Also in attendance: Ian Blinkho (Locum Solicitor) 
 

 PART I ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE 
PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

 
51. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
An apology for absence had been received from Councillor D. Edwards. 
 
52. MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillor N. Phillips had attended as a substitute for Councillor D. Edwards for this 
meeting. 
 
53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/DISPENSATIONS 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
54. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED:- That the press and public not be excluded during consideration of the 
items on the agenda. 
 
 
 

5

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 
 

2 

55. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 31st October, 2023 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 
56. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
No representations had been received. 
 
57. PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
The Head of Development Management reported on the following planning 
applications:- 
  
Proposed Housing Development at Long Lane/Newton Road, Dalton-in-
Furness 
  
From Mulberry Homes Limited in respect of a residential development of 34 No. 
dwellings, with landscaping, biodiversity enhancement and associated highway 
works at Long Lane/Newton Road, Dalton-in-Furness as shown on planning 
application number 2022/0083. 
  
Members queried the details of the revised junction improvement design and 
recommended that it incorporate pedestrian crossing measures. It was agreed that 
this would be fed back to the Highways Authority. 
  
It was moved by Councillor Cassidy and seconded by Councillor McEwan, and 
  
RESOLVED:- It was agreed that; 
  

(A)         Subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement relating to the on-
site provision of 4(four) affordable housing units, a £40,613 contribution to 
off-site highways improvement (Long Lane/Newton Road junction), and 
the management and maintenance of on-site public open spaces, then; 
  

(B)         Planning permission be granted subject to conditions covering those 
matters as set out below, with delegated authority given to the Head of 
Development to finalise the drafting of the conditions:- 

  
Standard Duration Limit 

  
1.        The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 

years beginning with the date of this permission. 
  
           Reason 
 
           Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

6



 

 
 
 

3 

           Compliance with Approved Plans 
  
2.        The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 

accordance with the application dated and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where 
varied by conditions attached to this consent: 

  
         Application form (amended) dated 14/12/2022;  
         Location Plan dwg. DL/00/Rev.C 
         Topographical Survey dwg. 121014/TOP;  
         Proposed Site Layout (topographic base) dwg. DL10/Rev.Z;  
         Proposed Site Layout dwg. DL/10 Rev.AP;  
         Landscape Plan dwg. MHLLNR-WW-01 Rev.Q;  
         Proposed Fencing to Pond - Westwood Landscape dated 

15/11/2023;  
         Proposed Site Sections (Plots26-28 incl.) dwg. DL60 Rev.C;  
         Affordable Housing Statement – Resolve 106 Affordable Housing 

Consultancy (amended) dated 13/06/2023;  
         Preliminary Risk Assessment – ref.BEK/145051/1 Rev.E June 2023;  
         Ecological Scoping Survey – Hesketh Ecology – ref. 

MHL14SCO016.2 dated 02/11/2018;  
         Ecological Scoping Survey Update Letter dated 11/01/2022;  
         BNG Metric ref.P1284 Rev.A;  
         Travel Plan - Amni Transportation (amended) ref.273/21/1B dated 

09/06/2023;  
         Transport Statement – Amni Transportation ref.272/21/1B; 
         Drainage Statement - M&P Gadsen ref. MG/CN19119 dated 

30/11/2021;  
         Percolation Test Locations dwg. 11919/PL01/02.5.1 Rev.C;  
         Drainage Layout dwg. 19119/PL01/02.1.1 Rev.N; 
         Drainage Details (1) dwg. 19119/PL01/02.3.1;  
         Drainage Details (2) dwg. 19119/PL01/02.3.2 Rev.E;  
         Drainage Longitudinals (2) dwg. 19119/PL01/02.2.2 Rev.B;  
         Drainage Longitudinals (1) dwg. 19119/PL01/02.3.1 Rev.C;  
         Exceedance Route (amended) dwg. 19119/PL01/2.4.1 Rev.K;  
         Adoption Plan (amended) dwg. 19119/PL01/01.6 Rev.H;  
         External Works Layout dwg. 19119/PL01/01.5 Rev.N;  
         Road Levels dwg. 19119/PL01/01.2 Rev.K;  
         Road Layout dwg. 19119/PL01/01.1 Rev.K;  
         Carriageway Longitudinals (1) dwg. 19119/PL01/01.3.1 Rev.H;  
         Typical Construction Details (4) dwg. 19119/PL01/01.4.04;  
         Typical Construction Details (3) dwg. 19119/PL01/01.4.03 Rev.A;  
         Typical Construction Details (2) dwg. 19119/PL01/01.4.02;  
         Typical Construction Details (1) dwg. 19119/PL01/01.4.01 Rev.C;  
         House Type: BD105D (plot 23) – Rev.K;  
         House Type: BD362 Rev.K; 
  

7



 

 
 
 

4 

         House Type: Henley Rev.B;  
         House Type: Henley Rev.B;  
         House Type: Holmeswood Rev.F(1) WD A1;  
         House Type: Jenner Rev.N(1)-A1;  
         House Type: JJ3S Rev.B;  
         House Type: KK25 KK2s-1-Rev.AAD;  
         House Type: MR MR-1-Rev.Y;  
         House Type: Whitchurch w/garage WHIT-1-Rev.A;  
         House Type: Type V Rev.A;  
         House Type: Type V-DG Rev.A. 

  
Reason 
  
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 

  
3.        Prior to the commencement of any development a Construction Method 

Statement (CMS) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. The approved CMS shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period and provide for: 

  
         The hours of construction on any day including bank holidays; 
         Times of deliveries to the construction site; 
         The parking of vehicles by site operatives; 
         Loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
         Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
         Wheel-wash facilities; 
         Measures to control emission of dust and dirt during construction; 
         A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste from construction work; 
         Measures to avoid pollution including silting of water courses; 
         Measures to protect wildlife. 

  
Reason 
  
In the interests of highway safety, the general amenity of the area and its 
occupants and users, and the proper drainage of the site. 

  
4.        In addition to the details required under Condition 3, development shall 

not commence until a Construction Phase Traffic Management Plan 
(CPTM) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The CTMP shall include details of: 

  
        pre-construction road condition established by a detailed survey for 

accommodation works within the highways boundary conducted with 
a Highway Authority representative; with all post repairs carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority at the applicants 
expense; 

        details of proposed crossings of the highway verge; 

8



 

 
 
 

5 

 
        cleaning of site entrances and the adjacent public highway; 
        the sheeting of all HGVs taking spoil to/from the site to prevent 

spillage or deposit of any materials on the highway; 
        construction vehicle routing; 
        the management of junctions to and crossings of the public highway 

and other public rights of way/footway; 
        surface water management details during the construction phase. 
  
Reason 
  
In the interests of highway safety, the general amenity of the area and its 
occupants and users, and the proper drainage of the site. 
  

5.        The Preliminary Investigation has identified potential unacceptable risks, 
a Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with 
established procedures (BS10175 (2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for 
the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Land 
Contamination Risk Management (LCRM)), shall be undertaken to 
determine the presence and degree of contamination and must be 
undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land practitioner. The 
results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before any development 
begins. 

  
           Reason 
  
           To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
adopted Policy C4. 

  
6.        Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no 

development shall take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of remedial options and 
proposal of the preferred options(s), all works to be undertaken, proposed 
remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification plan. The 
scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land 
under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the 
intended use. 

  
           Reason 
  
           To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 

9



 

 
 
 

6 

the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
adopted Policy C4. 

  
7.        The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a 

Verification Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, prior to the occupation of the development. 

  
         Reason 

  
           To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
adopted Policy C4. 

  
8.        In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 

approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be 
reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on 
the part of the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall 
be carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, 
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented 
prior to occupation of the development. 

  
           Reason 
  
           To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
adopted Policy C4. 

  
9.        No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 

contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the 
sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be 
carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its 
completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

  
 
 

10



 

 
 
 

7 

            
Reason 

  
           To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
adopted Policy C4. 

   
10.        Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems with foul 

directed to the main foul sewer. 
  
 Reason 
  
 In the interests of the proper drainage of the site and in furtherance of 

adopted Policy C3a. 
  
11.        No dwellings shall be occupied (unless in accordance with a scheme of 

phasing previously submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority) until the estate road, including footways, has been 
constructed in all respects to base course level, and street lighting has 
been provided and brought into full operational use in accordance with 
details approved under condition 13 below, including any scheme of 
phasing. 

  
 Reason 
  
 To ensure that, in the interests of the safety of highway users and 

pedestrians a suitable standard of access for the development exists at 
all times in furtherance of adopted Policy DS5. 

  
12.        The carriageway, footway and footpaths shall be designed, constructed, 

drained and lit to an adoptable standard and in this respect further 
details, including a full specification, setting out plan, lighting details, 
longitudinal and cross sections, and details of phasing shall have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior 
to the laying out of the approved estate roads. The development shall 
then proceed in accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason 
  
 To ensure that, in the interests of the safety of highway users and 

pedestrians a suitable standard of access for the development exists at 
all time in furtherance of adopted Policy DS5. 

  
13.        Prior to the occupation of the <TBA> dwelling a programme for the 

completion of the estate roads including footways where shown shall 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

11



 

 
 
 

8 

Authority and the estate roads shall then be completed in accordance 
with the approved programme and the details approved under condition 
11 above. 

  
 Reason 
  
 To ensure that, in the interests of the safety of highway users and 

pedestrians a suitable standards of access for the development exists at 
all times in furtherance of adopted Policy DS5. 

  
14.        Details of all measures to prevent surface water discharging onto the 

highway from house drives/parking areas shall have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority for approval prior 
to the occupation of any part of the development. The works shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the 
occupation of the respective dwelling and shall be permanently 
maintained operational thereafter. 

  
 Reason 
  
 In the interests of the proper drainage of the site and in furtherance of 

sustainable drainage principles in accordance with adopted policy DS5 
and C3a. 

  
15.        All garages and parking spaces serving each dwelling as set-out on the 

approved plans shall be reserved solely for the parking of private motor 
vehicles and no permanent development, whether permitted by the Town 
& Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modifications) or not, shall be carried out on those spaces. 

  
 Reason 
  
 To ensure appropriate access and parking provision is made and 

retained in the interests of general amenity and highway safety. 
  
16.        Prior to the occupation of the development a sustainable drainage 

management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development 
shall be submitted to the local planning authority and agreed in writing. 
The sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan shall 
include as a minimum: 

  
        Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory 

undertaker, or, management and maintenance by a residents’ 
management company; and 

        Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all 
elements of the sustainable drainage system to secure the operation 
of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime. 

12



 

 
 
 

9 

  
The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and 
managed in accordance with the approved plan. 
  
Reason 
  
To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the 
sustainable drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution during the lifetime of the development in accordance with 
adopted policies DS5 and C3a. 

  
17.      All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out by the developer in the first planting and 
seeding seasons following beneficial occupation of any part of the 
development, or in accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed 
in writing with the Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a 
period of five years from the completion of the development die, are 
removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced 
by the landowner in the next planting season with others of a similar size 
and species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to 
any variation. 

  
           Reason 
  
           In the interests of the long-term biodiversity and visual amenities of the 

area in furtherance of adopted policies DS5 and DS6. 
  
18.      The public open space (‘POS’) as shown on the approved plans shall be 

constructed and landscaped and made available for use as such no later 
than the occupation of 50% of the dwellings approved. That are shall not 
thereafter be used for any purpose other than as public open space 
unless the Planning Authority gives prior express consent for any 
variation. 

  
           Reason 
  
           To ensure a reasonable level of informal play and casual amenity 

provision in furtherance of adopted Policies HC1 and HC10 and DS5. 
  
19.      Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) details of all 
fences, hedges, wall or other means of enclosure around residential 
curtilages must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The means of 
enclosure must be completed prior to the beneficial occupation of the 
respective dwelling or, in the case of hedges, in the first planting season 
following the commencement of the beneficial use of the development. 

  

13



 

 
 
 

10 

 
           Reason 
  
           In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and its occupants in 

furtherance of Policy DS5. 
  
 20.     The development shall not be begun until visibility splays providing clear 

visibility of 2.4 metres x 60 metres measured down the centre of the main 
access road and the nearside channel line of Long Lane as shown on the 
approved plans have been provided at the junction of the access road 
with the County Highways. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification) relating to permitted development, no structure, vehicle or 
object of any kind shall be erected, parked or placed and no trees, 
bushes, or other plants shall be planted or be permitted to grow within the 
identified visibility splays. 

  
           Reason 
  
           To ensure that in the interests of the safety of highway users a suitable 

standard of access for the development exists at all times during 
construction and operational phases, and in order to minimise potential 
hazards. 

  
21.      Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or of any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) nothing in Article 
3 or Schedule 2 to that Order, shall operate so as to permit within the 
area subject of this permission any development referred to in Part 1, 
Classes A, B, C, D, E or in Part 2, Class A, of that 2015 Order (or of any 
Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modifications, 
and no such development shall be carried out at any time within that area 
without the prior express grant of permission by the Planning Authority. 

  
           Reason 
  
           In order to safeguard the amenities of the area by enabling the Planning 

Authority to consider whether planning permission should be granted for 
<INSERT> having regard to the particular layout and design of the 
development. 

  
22.      Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or of any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) nothing in Article 
3 or Schedule 2 to that Order, shall operate so as to permit within the 
area subject of this permission any development referred to in Part 1, 
Classes A, AA, B, C, D, E or in Part 2, Class A, of that 2015 Order (or of 
any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 

14



 

 
 
 

11 

modifications, and no such development shall be carried out at any time 
within that area without the prior express grant of permission by the 
Planning Authority. 

  
           Reason 
  
           In order to safeguard the amenities of the area by enabling the Planning 

Authority to consider whether planning permission should be granted for 
further development within the curtilage of each dwelling house having 
regard to the particular layout and design of the development and in 
furtherance of adopted Policy DS5. 

  
23.      Unless the Local Planning Authority gives written agreement that it is 

impractical to do so, all hard surfaced areas within residential curtilages 
associated with vehicle use shall be of permeable construction, and 
detailed drawings (including cross sections of sub surface and surface 
materials) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details prior to beneficial occupation of any part of the 
development, or in accordance with a phasing scheme agreed in writing 
with the Planning Authority. 

  
           Reason 
  
           In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained in accordance with 

the sustainable principles found in the NPPF and in furtherance of 
adopted Policy c3a. 

  
24.      No development shall take place until samples of the external materials 

to be used in the construction of the dwellings, including walls, roofs and 
hard surfaces within the curtilage hereby permitted have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
thereafter retained unless the Planning Authority gives prior written 
consent to any variation. 

  
           Reason 
  
           To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to 

minimise its impact upon the surrounding area in furtherance of adopted 
Policy DS5. 

  
25.      No development shall be commenced on site, until a scheme has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority, showing 
measures to be taken to protect the existing hedgerows to be retained as 
shown on the approved plans as an integral part of any development of 
the site during and throughout the entirety of the construction phase of 
the approved development. The development shall proceed in 
accordance with the approved details. 

  

15



 

 
 
 

12 

           Reason 
  
           In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and biodiversity in 

furtherance of adopted policies DS5, GI1, N2, N3, N4 and GI6. 
  

Land at TantabankRoad/East of Brent Avenue, Dalton-in-Furness 
  
From Oakmere Homes c/o Agent JWPC Chartered Town Planners in respect of full 
planning permission for the erection of 41 dwellings associated access from Brent 
Avenue, landscaping and infrastructure, including demolition of existing stables on 
Land at Tantabank Road/East of Brent Avenue, Dalton-in-Furness as shown on plan 
number 2022/0656. 
  
Members raised the issue of future drainage management and maintenance and 
requested that an extra condition be attached requiring a Drainage Management 
Plan. 
 
It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and 
  
RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that; 
  

(A)         Subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement relating to the on-
site provision of 4(four) affordable housing units, a £48,974.50 
contribution to off-site highways improvement (Long Lane/Newton Road 
junction), and the management and maintenance of on-site public open 
spaces, then; 
  

(B)         Planning permission be granted subject to conditions covering those 
matters set out below, including an extra condition to those set out in the 
report requiring a Drainage Management Plan, with delegated authority 
given to the Head of Development to finalise the drafting of the 
conditions:- 

  
Standard Duration Limit 

  
1.        The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 

years beginning with the date of this permission. 
  

Reason 
  

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

  
Compliance with Approved Plans 

  
2.        The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 

accordance with the application dated and the hereby approved 

16



 

 
 
 

13 

documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where 
varied by conditions attached to this consent: 

  
         08-P-03 Rev.B - Proposed Surface Treatment Plan - 22-05-2023 
         076-CL-01 Rev.A 1000mm Chainlink Fence Topped With Tension 

Wire - 20-07-2023 
         088-3B-P03 - Rev.A - House Type 3B - 31-05-2023 
         088-ASC-P03 REV.A - ASCOT HOUSE TYPE 
         088-BOW-V2-P03 REV.A - BOWFELL HOUSE TYPE 
         088-P-01.2 REV.D - Proposed Site Plan - 31-03-2023 
         088-P-02 Proposed Boundary Treatment Plan Rev.B 
         088-P04 - Rev.A - Proposed Material Finish Plan - 21-03-2023 
         088-P-05 - EV Charging Plan 
         088-P-06 - Rev.A - Affordable Tenure Plan - August 2022 
         088-PARKING-01 - Parking Plan Rev.B 
         088-PAT-P03 REV.A - PATTERDALE HOUSE TYPE 
         088-RUS-P03 REV.A - RUSLAND HOUSE TYPE 
         088-SL-01 REV.B - Site Location Plan - 08-11-2022 
         088-WAS-PO1 REV.A - WASDALE HOUSE TYPE 
         15169-C-68 - Private Drainage Details 
         BEK-22078-2-Rev.A - Site Investigation & Ground Assessment - 

March 2023 
         BNG Report - 17-11-2022 
         Broxap 4 slat bench - photo 
         BS5837 Tree Survey Report July 2023 V.3 
         c-2069-01-Rev.A - Tree Survey Plan - Tree Protection Measures 
         c-2069-02-Rev.E - Detailed Landscape Proposals 
         c-2069-03 - Landscape Phasing Plan - July 2023 
         CMS Tantabank 21.7.23 
         CPTMP Tantabank 21.7.23 
         Gadsen Letter 29-06-2023 –Swale Designs 
         K-Nine Dog waste bin 
         Landscape Appraisal - November 2022 
         Landscape Management Plan August 2023 v2 
         Planning Design and Access Statement inc Affordable Housing 

Statement - JWPC - 
         AUGUST 2022 
         Preliminary Ecological Appraisal - V.2 - Envirotech - 22-08-2022 
         SD-SW-07 1800mm Stone Wall with Feather Edge Fencing Infill - 

July 2020 
         SHD679 - Lighting Layout - Rev.R2 - 31-07-2022 
         SHD679-SHD-HLG-TANA-DR-EO-Lighting Layout-R2 
         SHD679-SHD-HLG-TANA-RA-EO-Lighting Design Risk Assessment-

R2 
         SHD679-SHD-HLG-TANA-SH-EO-Lighting Schedule-R2 
         Transport Statement - DTPC - J1439-TS - August 2022 
         Utilities Statement - JW-PND9412 - REV.3 - 19-08-2022 

17



 

 
 
 

14 

         Application Form – amended – 28-11-2022 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1000 P08 - Drainage Layout 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1005 P07 - Exceedance Route 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1011 P04 - SW Manhole Schedules 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1012 P02 - SW Manhole Schedules 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1021 P04 - Sewer Longsections Sheet 1 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1022 P02 - Sewer Longsections Sheet 2 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1030 P05 - Impermeable Areas Plan 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1071 P03 - Drainage Details Sheet 1 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1072 P02 - Drainage Details Sheet 2 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1075 P01 - Basin Sections 1 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1076 P01 - Basin Sections 2 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1090 P01 - S106 Manhole Detail 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1400 P06 - External Levels - SW Highways 

Prevention 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1500 P05 - Highway Setting out 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1511 P02 - Road 1 Setting Out 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1512 P02 - Road 2 Longsection 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1513 P02 - Road 3 Longsection 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1514 P01 - Road 4 Longsection 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1530 P02 - Highways Details 
         22200-GAD-ZZ-00-DR-C-1550 P05 - Surface Finishes and Kerbing 

Layout 
         FRA and Drainage Strategy Report - Gadsen Consulting - V.8 - 21-

09-2023 
  

Reason 
  
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 

  
3.        The approved DMS and the CPTMP dated 21-07-2023 shall be adhered 

to throughout the pre-construction and construction phases of the 
development. 

  
Reason 

  
           In the interests of highway safety, the general amenity of the area and its 

occupants and users, and the proper drainage of the site. 
  
4.        On the basis of the submitted Site Investigation and Ground Assessment 

Report (ref: BEK-22078-2 Rev A. March 2023) and further to this Report’s 
findings and recommendations under paragraphs 6.3 and 6.4 in the event 
that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported 
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of 
the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall be carried 
out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, remediation and 

18



 

 
 
 

15 

verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before development is re-commenced, and 
thereafter be implemented prior to occupation of the development. 

  
Reason 

  
           To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
adopted Policy C4. 

  
5.        No soil material shall be imported to the site until it has been tested for 

contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the 
sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be 
carried out as per the agreed methodology. 

  
Reason 

  
           To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 

land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
adopted Policy C4. 

  
6.        Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems with foul 

drainage directed to the main foul sewer. 
  
           Reason 
  
           In the interests of the proper drainage of the site and in furtherance of 

adopted Policy C3a. 
  
7.        The carriageway, footways and footpaths shall be constructed, drained 

and lit to an adoptable standard in accordance with the details hereby 
approved. 

  
Reason 
  
To ensure that, in the interests of the safety of highway users and 
pedestrians a suitable standard of access for the development exists at 
all times in furtherance of adopted Policy DS5. 

19



 

 
 
 

16 

  
8.        No dwellings shall be occupied until the estate road, including footways, 

has been constructed in all respects to base course level, and street 
lighting has been provided and brought into full operational use in 
accordance with the details hereby approved. 

  
Reason 

  
           To ensure that, in the interests of the safety of highways users and 

pedestrians a suitable standard of access for the development exists at 
all times in furtherance of adopted Policy DS5. 

  
9.        The programme for the completion of the estate roads including footways 

where shown shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
programme and the details approved under condition 10 below. 

  
Reason 

  
           To ensure that, in the interests of the safety of highways users and 

pedestrians a suitable standard of access for the development exists at 
all times in furtherance of adopted Policy DS5. 

  
10.        The measures to prevent surface water discharging onto the highway 

from house drives/parking areas hereby approved shall be implemented 
in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of the 
respective dwelling and shall be permanently maintained operational 
thereafter. 

  
Reason 

  
 In the interests of the proper drainage of the site and in furtherance of 

sustainable drainage principles in accordance with adopted policies DS5 
and C3a. 

  
11.        All garages and parking spaces serving each dwelling as set-out on the 

approved plans shall be reserved solely for the parking of private motor 
vehicles and no permanent development, whether permitted by the Town 
& Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modifications) or not, shall be carried out on those spaces. 

  
Reason 
  
To ensure appropriate access and parking provision is made and 
retained in the interests of general amenity and highway safety. 

  
12.      Prior to occupation of the development a sustainable drainage 

management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development 
shall be submitted to the local planning authority and agreed in writing. 

20



 

 
 
 

17 

 
The sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan shall 
include as a minimum: 

  
        Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory 

undertaker, or, management and maintenance by a resident’s 
management company; and 

        Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all 
elements of the sustainable drainage system to secure the operation 
of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime. 

  
The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and 
managed in accordance with the approved plan. 
  
Reason 
  
To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the 
sustainable drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution during the lifetime of the development in accordance with 
adopted policies DS5 and C3a. 

  
13.      The landscaping scheme, including the informal children’s play area 

(ICPA) and the protective means of enclosure around the entire perimeter 
of the attenuation pond as part of the sustainable drainage system 
hereby approved, shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details as part of the approved development, and all planting and 
subsequent maintenance shall be to current British Standards. 

  
Reason 
  
In the interests of the long-term biodiversity, the visual amenities of the 
area in furtherance of adopted policies DS5 and DS6. 

  
14.      Further to Condition 13: 
  
(A)         The laying out, equipping and maintenance of an informal children’s play 

area (ICPA) shall be provided as part of the approved overall landscaping 
scheme, and completed and made available for public use prior to the 
first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved, and retained as 
such thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning 
authority; and 
  

(B)         The protective means of enclosure around the entire perimeter of the 
attenuation pond as part of the sustainable drainage system hereby 
approved shall be completed before the first occupation of any of the 
dwellings hereby approved and retained in situ and in perpetuity unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority. 

  

21



 

 
 
 

18 

  
Reason 
  
To ensure an appropriate level of public recreational provision serving the 
approved development, and in the interests of public safety to accord with 
and in furtherance of adopted policies DS2(f), DS5, G1(d), HC1 and 
HC10. 

  
15.        Further to Condition 13, the completed approved landscaping scheme 

shall be subject to the provisions of the approved Landscape 
Management Plan (June 2023) for not less than 5 years following 
implementation, for all areas of landscaping other than those within the 
curtilages of individual dwellings. 

  
Reason 

  
 In the interests of the long-term visual amenities of the area and to 

support wider opportunities for biodiversity within the locality in 
accordance with adopted policies DS5 and DS6. 

  
16.        Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) details of all 
fences, hedges, wall or other means of enclosure around residential 
curtilages must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The means of 
enclosure must be completed prior to the beneficial occupation of the 
respective dwelling or, in the case of hedges, in the first planting season 
following the commencement of the beneficial use of the development. 

  
Reason 

  
 In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and its occupants in 

furtherance of Policy DS5. 
  
17.        Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or of any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) nothing in Article 
3 or Schedule 2 to that Order, shall operate so as to permit within the 
area subject of this permission any development referred to in Part 1, 
Classes A, B, C, D, E or in Part 2, Class A, of that 2015 Order (or of any 
Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modifications, 
and no such development shall be carried out at any time within that area 
without the prior express grant of permission by the Planning Authority. 

  
  Reason 
  
 In order to safeguard the amenities of the area by enabling the Planning 

Authority to consider whether planning permission should be granted for 

22



 

 
 
 

19 

further ancillary development within the curtilage of each dwelling house 
having regard to the particular layout and design of the development and 
in furtherance of adopted Policy DS5. 

  
18.        The development hereby approved shall be constructed using the 

following external materials, samples of which were deposited with and 
recorded as such by the Local Planning Authority on the 10th July 2023, 
unless the Local Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any 
variation: 

  
•      Roof - Artificial Slate; UK Slate- Blue Grey “Estillo 3”; 
•      Paths - Bradstone 600 x 600 x 40 Riven paving flag; 
•     Walls - Bekstone ‘Natural Light Weathered’ Tumbled (assorted 

lengths); 
•      Drives - Impermeable Driveway Sett (60mm Inglestone) Charcoal. 
  
Reason 
  
To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to minimise 
its impact upon the surrounding area in furtherance of adopted Policy 
DS5. 

  
19.        All operations carried out on site in connection with the development 

hereby approved (including demolition works, tree works, fires, soil 
moving, temporary access construction and / or widening or any 
operations involving the use of motorised vehicles or construction 
machinery) shall be undertaken in accordance with and by application of 
the provisions and measures set out in the approved Tree Survey Report 
and Tree Survey Plan. 

  
 Reason 
  

To safeguard trees and hedgerows in the interests of the visual amenities 
of the area and biodiversity in furtherance of adopted policies DS5, GI1, 
N2, N3, N4 and GI6. 
  

 
58. URGENT ITEMS 
 
There were no urgent items for consideration on this occasion. 
  
 

The meeting ended at 10.53 am 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
FOR DECISION 

 
19th December 2023 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 

 
The applications within this report have been submitted for determination under the 

Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Head of Development Management (Barrow) 
 

Page 1 of 3125

Agenda Item 7



                          

B20/2023/0464 
Planning Committee 

19th December 2023 
Application Number : B20/2023/0464 Date Valid :26/07/2023 

Address : 175-177 Dalton Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1PX Case Officer : Jennifer Dickinson 

Proposal : Proposed conversion of commercial premises (use class E(a)) to 12 
no. bedroom HMO (Sui-Generis) at first and second floors and welfare facilities at 
ground floor. Raising the roof height to the rear of the property by 1 metre and 
remodel of large existing ground floor shop unit to two smaller shop units and 
associated external alterations (amended description). 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : Barrow Town Parish Council 

Applicant : Prestige Properties NW 
SSAS, Joe Nuttall building services  

Agent : Mr N Shepherd, Shepherd 
Architecture and Surveying  

Statutory Date : 20/09/2023 Recommendation : GRANTED WITH 
CONDITIONS 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2023 - Para NPPF 011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2023 - Para NPPF 130 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2023 - Para NPPF 203 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment 
to sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H26 - Large Houses in 

Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and the Subdivision of Dwellings 

Page 2 of 3126

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B20/2023/0464


 

5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R1 - The Vision for Barrow 
and Dalton Town Centres 

6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R17 - Conversion of upper 
floors to residential units within the town centre 

7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R2 - Barrow Town Centre 
8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R3 - Barrow’s Primary 

Shopping Area 

Summary of Main Issues 

This application is being reported to committee due to a request by a Councillor. The 
key considerations for this proposal are the the impact of the conversion upon the 
available retail offer within the primary shopping area, external design and the 
amenity standards for future occupiers. Whilst the agent has provided amended 
drawings that show a more sympathetic design it is missing some architectural 
details and it is recommended that this be delegated to the Head of DM. 

Non Material Considerations 

None 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Cavendish Street 80, 82, 
Dalton Road 173, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

Site notice displayed expiring on 29.8.23 

Reasons cited for Councillor call-in 

• Number of existing HMOs in town centre wards 
• Change of ground floor from prime retail use to residential 
• Permanent loss of retail use in prime Dalton Road site as the Council is trying 

to regenerate 
• Parking issues 
• Public concerns 
• Important that the principle should be determined by Councillors 

Page 3 of 3127



Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
BAE Systems - Emergency Planning Officer (Nuclear) 
Barrow Town Parish Council 
Building Control 
Emergency Planning - Joint Emergency Management and Resilience (JEMR) Team 
HMO officer 
Highways 
Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 
Public Protection Services 
United Utilities (Planning Liaison) 
 

List of Organisation Responses 

27/07/2023  

Building Control 

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals.” 

28/07/2023 

Joint Emergency Management and Resilience (JEMR) Team - 28/07/2023 

“Our response is the following: 

The BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency Preparedness 
and Public Information) 2019 Regulations. There are no objections to the proposed 
development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the 
proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of 
BAE. Westmorland and Furness Council, in liaison with the site operator and the 
Office for Nuclear Regulation, have certain special arrangements are made for 
residents/business premises in this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring 
that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at 
the site. 

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being 
approved, advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further 
discussion.” 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 3128



21/08/2023 

Highways and Lead Local Flood Authority - 18/08/2023 

"Westmorland & Furness Council as the Local Highway Authority (LHA) and Lead 
Local Flood Authority (LLFA)  has reviewed the above planning reference and I can 
confirm that we have no objection to the proposed development as it is considered 
that it will not have a material effect on existing highway conditions nor will it 
increase the flood risk on the site or elsewhere." 

08/08/2023  

Public Protection Services Licensing 

“This appears to be a 12 bed HMO which would require a Mandatory HMO Licence 
under Housing Act 2004.  

The bedrooms all appear to be adequately sized and all have en-suite bathrooms. 
The large kitchen should be sufficient for the number of occupants with the addition 
of a brew station on each floor, although consideration to additional kitchen items 
might be considered. There should be a cupboard for each occupier as well as 
sufficient space in the fridge/freezer. 

A fire risk assessment will be needed to ensure all fire risks are mitigated, especially 
in view to being located next to a commercial premises.” 

21/11/2023  

Public Protection Services - 21/11/2023. 

"I've looked at the report and the calculations are sound. The concern relates to night 
time economy noise and the impact on internal noises with the residents especially if 
a window is open. The mitigation for this is stated as closed acoustics venting etc. 

I see no reason why the recommendations cannot be accepted and implemented. 
But I would request that confirmation of this is done upon completion" 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 5 of 3129



Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The host property is a corner property which historically was a shoe shop (latterly 
Stead and Simpson) and more recently a Red Cross charity shop.  It is set over 
three floors and is in a prominent corner position within the Primary Shopping area 
on Dalton Road at the junction with Cavendish Street and has been vacant for a 
number of years.  Due to the corner position, the rear of the site is bounded by two 
other properties and their rear projections.  This affords the area some shelter from 
adjacent uses.  Across the back street is the rear elevation of the Preston Street 
Club.  The property has some historic value given that it dates back to the 1893 
historic maps, and as it remains fairly original externally at first and second floor 
level, it is considered to be a non designated heritage asset. 

1.2 The locality of the site has a mix of both day and night time uses and it is adjacent 
to an area with a night time economy operating until early in the morning. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Proposed conversion of commercial premises (use class E(a)) to 12 no. bedroom 
HMO (Sui-Generis) at first and second floors and welfare facilities at ground floor.  
Raising the roof height to the rear of the property by 1 metre and remodel of large 
existing ground floor shop unit to two smaller shop units. 

2.2 The proposal provides that the majority of the existing ground floor retail space 
will be subdivided the create two small shops with individual welfare facilities.  One 
shop spans the Dalton Road elevation with the other facing into Cavendish Street.  
The remaining floor area would be converted into a communal kitchen/amenity 
space and bike storage for the HMO use are also provided on this level. 

2.3 At first floor level, 6 en-suite bedrooms ranging in size from 13.8m2 to 17m2 and 
"brew station" are provided.  Similarly, at second floor level a further 6 en-suite 
bedrooms and brew room are provided of the same size.  Bin storage is provided to 
the rear yard. 

2.4 Externally, to the front elevation facing onto Cavendish Street, one shopfront 
window is to be replaced with two smaller windows with matching in fill materials to 
provide the ground floor amenity space for the HMO.  The remaining shop fronts are 
retained in their existing form. To the rear elevation, an extension is proposed at 
second floor level to provide additional internal height.  This is proposed to extend up 
to the existing eaves height with a flat roof. 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 3130



3. Relevant History 

3.1 83/1997/0117 173 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness - Display of a projecting sign 
and external illumination of fascia sign by spot lights Appcond 19/02/1997 
 
3.2 B13/2017/0100 173 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness - Conversion of first and 
second floors of existing retail premises to form 2 one bedroom flats Appcond 
10/03/2017 
 
3.3 B13/2017/0421 173 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness - Conversion of ground floor 
retail premises into one bedroom flat REFUSED 07/11/2017 
 
3.4 B20/2007/1406 80 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use of 
opticians to tea room and bakery with takeaway facility (restrospective) Appcond 
04/01/2008 
 
3.5 B20/2009/1801 80 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use from tea 
room and bakery with take-away facility to private hire taxi office - Retrospective 
Refused 31-MAR-2010 
 
3.6 B20/2018/0683 80 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use from 
Retail (Class A1) to an MP's office providing advice offices to the public (Class A2) 
APPCOND 30/11/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 3131



4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The key considerations with regards to this proposal are the impact upon the 
primary shopping area, the indicated design, and the potential amenity standards for 
future occupiers. 

4.2 Existing use of site 

4.3 The existing use of the site is Class E which permits the following: 

• E(a) Display or retail sale of goods, other than hot food 
• E(b) Sale of food and drink for consumption (mostly) on the premises 
• E(c) Provision of:  

o E(c)(i) Financial services, 
o E(c)(ii) Professional services (other than health or medical services), or 
o E(c)(iii) Other appropriate services in a commercial, business or 

service locality 
• E(d) Indoor sport, recreation or fitness (not involving motorised vehicles or 

firearms or use as a swimming pool or skating rink,) 
• E(e) Provision of medical or health services (except the use of premises 

attached to the residence of the consultant or practitioner) 
• E(f) Creche, day nursery or day centre (not including a residential use) 
• E(g) Uses which can be carried out in a residential area without detriment to 

its amenity:  
o E(g)(i) Offices to carry out any operational or administrative functions, 
o E(g)(ii) Research and development of products or processes 
o E(g)(iii) Industrial processes 

4.4 The proposed use would be a sui generis use given the proposed mix of retail and 
residential.  The principle of retention of retail use at the ground floor level is 
accepted as this element falls within the current use. 

4.5 Relevant Policies and Guidance 

4.6 The National Planning Policy Framework (2023)(NPPF) under paragraph 11 
outlines the presumption in favour of sustainable development, it states:  "For 
decision-taking this means: c) approving development proposals that accord with an 
up-to-date development plan without delay". 

4.7 Paragraph 12 goes on to state:  "The presumption in favour of sustainable 
development does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the 
starting point for decision making". 

4.8 Paragraph 130 states that planning decisions should ensure that developments 
create places that are safe, promote health and wellbeing, with a high standard of 
amenity 

4.9 Paragraph 203 requires that the effect of an application on a non-designated 
heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the application. 

Page 8 of 3132



4.10 Local Plan Policy 

4.11 When referring to paragraph 12 of the NPPF, as mentioned above, the local plan 
is the starting point for decision making.  The local plan policies listed are considered 
to align with the principles, aims and objectives of the NPPF.   

4.12 Particularly relevant to this proposal are retail policies R1, R2 and R3, design 
policy DS5 and residential policies R17 and H26 which particularly relate to the HMO 
element of the proposal. 

4.13 Retail Element 

4.14 The existing retail space (indicated as 105m²) is to be re-configured into two 
smaller retails units from the existing larger unit.  There is an area of 22.5m² which 
will be transferred to the HMO use.  Taking account of policy R3 which specifically 
relates to the primary shopping area, it advises that this area is the focus for retail 
uses in Barrow.  It sets criteria for proposals to be considered acceptable which 
include requiring the retention of an active frontage and that development 
compliments the retail function and character of the primary shopping area. It is 
considered that this development would meet the criteria.   

4.15 In addition to this, the applicant has provided a supporting statement to 
accompany the application which outlines previous developments they have 
undertaken which have resulted in a smaller retail footprint.  This details how the 
character of towns nationally is changing due to issues associated with internet 
competition and the demise of large national chains resulting in large vacant retail 
units on main streets, and in this respect Barrow is no different. This has created a 
commercial environment whereby smaller footprints seems to attract more 
independent businesses, and has been a successful approach elsewhere on Dalton 
Road. The proposal is welcomed in terms of seeking to retain an active retail 
frontage but of a footprint more likely to attract traders in the current commercial 
climate. 

4.16 Design 

4.17 The proposed development largely relates to internal changes to facilitate the 
change of use.  However, during the processing of the application it has been 
identified that the site could be considered a non designated heritage asset due to its 
historic nature and following some research a historic photograph of the site has 
been located which shows its earlier appearance.  We have worked with the agent to 
ensure the design takes into consideration the historic nature of the site and seeks to 
improve the current modern shop front arrangement.  The submitted details seek to 
comply with local plan policy DS5 which places importance on good design and 
NPPF paragraph 203 which requires that the effect of an application on the 
significance of the non designated heritage asset is taken into account when 
determining the application. Some of the detailing has not yet been received and this 
element is reflected in the recommendation. 

 

Page 9 of 3133



4.18 Proposed HMO 

4.19 The Local Plan states in its vision for Barrow town centre that it will support a 
mix, variety and flexibility of uses.  Policy R17 specifically refers to conversion of 
upper floors to residential units within the town centre.  It supports the conversion of 
upper floor areas where it will bring back vacant properties into use subject to the 
conversion providing an acceptable level of accommodation for future occupiers.  
Policy R1 refers to the local plan vision for the town centre which requires that the 
town centre continues to provide a mix of uses.  The introduction of housing in this 
location will add to the mix of uses in the town centre and create footfall into the 
primary shopping area.  

4.20 Policy H26 sets criteria for consideration to ensure an acceptable standard of 
accommodation is provided, and no unacceptable impact on the residential amenity 
of neighbouring properties.  In these respects the proposal does not lead to a loss of  
housing, and should not affect the character of the building or surrounding area.  
There are minimal external changes and the position within the town centre is such 
that there is already an established level of comings and goings.   

4.21 Over concentration of similar uses in the area is also a consideration under this 
policy.  In this instance, I have consulted the mapping system and there is only one 
such licensed use at the Crystal Palace serviced apartments on Dalkeith Street.  A 
recent approval at 109 - 111 Cavendish Street is also a relevant extant permission 
(2023/0365) which was for conversion into a HMO. 

4.22 Residential Amenity 

4.23 The residential amenity of future occupiers is a key matter to consider.  The 
layout of the HMO is set over three floors with a pedestrian entrance on Cavendish 
Street which will lead into a hall and bike storage area along with a multi use amenity 
area.  The first and second floor are accessed via a staircase and each floor benefits 
from a separate kitchen area with 6  rooms.   The internal design ensures that the 
individual units have access to sufficient natural light, privacy, outlook and indoor 
amenity space, and does not result in any inappropriate stacking of rooms.  Whilst 
soundproofing within the building will be dealt with under the Building Regulations, 
details of soundproofing on the boundary with the adjacent properties has been 
provided.  Colleagues in HMO licensing have been consulted and raised no 
objection, their suggested requirements in terms of cupboard/fridge/freezer space 
will be dealt with under their legislation.  I am satisfied that this can be 
accommodated in the space provided.  

 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 3134



4.24 Noise 

4.25 The determination of this application has been delayed to allow for a noise 
assessment to be carried out. Whilst town centre residents should expect some 
degree of background noise, the assessment is necessary due to the potential 
impact of higher noise levels arising from the evening economy particularly the 
Preston Street club to the rear.  An assessment has been carried out overnight at a 
weekend and during the day from the front and rear elevations of the property. The 
result of the assessment is that mitigation will be required in the form of 
soundproofed windows and trickle vents and this has been checked by colleagues in 
Public Protection.  They are satisfied that the assessment is sufficient and covers the 
necessary criteria to protect future occupiers from excessive noise impacts.  
However, in order for the mitigation to be effective the windows will need to remain 
closed.  

4.26 The agent has submitted a ventilation strategy which provides details to show 
that sufficient air circulation can be provided in the form of soundproofed trickle vents 
and silent extraction units to remove the need to open the windows. The source of 
noise is cited within the report to be largely from people walking along Dalton Road 
and Cavendish Street along with associated background noise. The option to open a 
window will still be available for occupiers at their discretion.  However, this should 
not be necessary to provide a comfortable environment.  This seems reasonable 
given the potential source of the noise. 

4.27 When consulting the planning practice guidance (PPG) on this matter it advises 
consideration should be given to: 

whether any adverse internal effects can be completely removed by closing windows 
and, in the case of new residential development, if the proposed mitigation relies on 
windows being kept closed most of the time (and the effect this may have on living 
conditions). In both cases a suitable alternative means of ventilation is likely to be 
necessary. 

4.28 The level of detail of the ventilation provided is considered sufficient to meet the 
requirements of the guidance.  

4.29 In terms of other criteria within the policy H26, there is sufficient space for 
storage of waste/recycling in the rear yard and this can be conditioned to be kept 
clear of obstructions.  Whilst there is a small outdoor amenity space, the site is within 
the town centre and within walking distance of amenity spaces and community 
uses nearby. 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 of 3135



4.30 In terms of transport, the site is set in a sustainable location for travel within the 
town centre with public car parks nearby should occupiers have access to a car.  No 
objection has been received from the Highways section on this matter.  This is in line 
with other town centre uses.  Sufficient cycle storage is provided which is in line with 
the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan.  When considering the details 
above, it is considered that, subject suitable mitigation the proposed development 
will provide a sufficient level of amenity to the future occupiers in line with policy H26 
and NPPF paragraph 130. 

4.31 It is also relevant to consider NPPF paragraph 185 which states: 

Planning policies and decisions should ensure that new development can be 
integrated effectively with existing businesses and community facilities (such as 
places of worship, pubs, music venues and sports clubs). Existing businesses and 
facilities should not have unreasonable restrictions placed on them as a result of 
development permitted after they were established. Where the operation of an 
existing business or community facility could have a significant adverse effect on 
new development (including changes of use) in its vicinity, the applicant (or ‘agent of 
change’) should be required to provide suitable mitigation before the development 
has been completed. 

4.32 Given the proposed mitigation, it is considered that there should not be any 
unreasonable restrictions placed on existing businesses.   Within the noise report, 
the source of noise was identified as largely coming from passers-by in Dalton Road 
and Cavendish Street so it is unlikely that this should be an issue. 

4.33 Material Consideration 

4.34 A material consideration in this matter is the history of a similar application which 
was refused partly due to the potential impact from noise at 26-28 Portland Walk 
(2020/0822) and is currently subject to an enforcement appeal.  It is similar in that, in 
order to mitigate the noise, the windows needed to be closed.  However, the 
difference in this instance is that supporting information has been provided by the 
agent to show that a comfortable living environment can be provided without the 
need to maintain open windows.   Whilst similar, these applications are not directly 
comparable given that the Portland Walk application related to self contained flats 
and there were also concerns over the layout.  It is relevant to also note that each 
application is assessed on its own merits.  

4.35 Councillor Call-in 

4.36 The application is being report to you today as it was called-in.  The concerns 
referred to are stated as: 

 

 

Page 12 of 3136



4.37 As stated above, there is only one such licensed use nearby with one further 
recent permission. In terms of their relative locations and the mix of uses within the 
town centre I do not consider that this is an overconcentration that would lead to a 
conflict with the Local Plan. These developments have utilised vacant buildings that 
would otherwise potentially remain vacant for some time with a subsequent blight on 
the town centre (so called "broken window" syndrome) and are considered to be a 
sustainable re-use of vacant  floorspace 

• Change of ground floor from prime retail use to residential 

4.38 A significant area (c.82.5m²) is retained for retail use on the ground floor either 
side of the corner of the building, with an area of 22.5m² of the Cavendish Street 
frontage converted to use within the HMO. This modest reduction will not adversely 
affect the overall retail offer in the town centre, where there are numerous empty 
premises of varying sizes available for occupation. 

• Permanent loss of retail use in prime Dalton Road site as the Council is 
trying to regenerate 

4.39 Taking account of the applicant's supporting statement (attached as appendices), 
the creation of two retail units in the town centre rather than one large vacant unit 
should attract a wider range of potential occupiers, including new start businesses.  
This is evidenced by the applicant's two previous properties at 82 and 243 Dalton 
Road.   

• Parking issues 

4.40 The area of the proposal is within the town centre close to two public car parks.  
The site is set within a sustainable location, and the  Local Plan policy relaxes 
parking requirements as a result. 

• Public concerns 

4.41 As referenced in earlier committee reports relating to HMO uses, the market is 
driving the need for the diversification of the housing market in the area.  These 
application types are providing accommodation which, according to occupancy levels 
in recently completed schemes, is needed.  In this particular instance, the design of 
the layout provides an acceptable standard of amenity whilst bringing investment into 
the area and a large vacant town centre property back into use.  The mix of retail 
and HMO use utilises the full property and should ensure the longevity of the site for 
the future.  I draw your attention to the applicant's supporting statement which is re-
produced in appendices this explains the background to this development and gives 
examples of other properties they have completed in the town centre. 

• Important that the principle should be determined by Councillors 

4.42 In accordance with the Delegation agreement, this report is submitted for your 
decision.  

Page 13 of 3137

lmoscrop
Typewritten text
     .    Number of existing HMOs in Town Centre Wards



4.43 Wider Benefits 

4.44 The proposed use brings back into use a disused building which has been 
vacant for some time and will renovate the site.  It will provide 12 homes in a 
sustainable location close to nearby amenities and employers.  The conversion of 
the property will provide employment during the conversion works, two retail 
premises and subsequent employment and also some employment from its ongoing 
management.  

4.45 Appeal Decisions 

4.46 In terms of the noise mitigation measures, a similar example to this application is 
covered in a national appeal reference APP/C3810/W/19/3230687.  This related to 
ventilation being provided mechanically to mitigate noise impacts upon a 
development whilst still providing windows which can be opened.  This allowed the 
occupiers flexibility to open windows or close them if needed to mitigate any noise 
impacts and this was found to be acceptable by the Inspector. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposed development will bring back into use a large vacant town centre 
property which is a non-designated heritage asset set within the primary shopping 
area.  Retention of the retail element is to be welcomed, accords with policy, and 
should assist in providing modern accommodation of a more appropriate size to 
meet retail needs.  The design of the proposal takes into account the historic nature 
of the site and seeks to replicate historic features.  The introduction of a residential 
use at the upper floor levels will assist in increasing footfall to the town centre whilst 
providing a suitable standard of amenity for the future occupants.   The development 
consequently accords with both local and national planning policies. 

5.2 In assessing this application, I confirm that the Authority has exercised the 
following duties: 

1. Under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 Local Planning Authorities must have 
due regard to the following when making decisions (i) eliminating discrimination, (ii) 
advancing equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it, and (iii) fostering good relations 
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do 
not share it. The protected characteristics are age (normally young or older people) 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, 
sex, sexual orientation.  

2. In determining applications, the Council must ensure that all parties get a fair 
hearing in compliance with the provisions of Article 6 under the European 
Convention on  Human Rights, as now embodied in UK law in the Human Rights Act 
1998. 

  

Page 14 of 3138



 

6. Recommendation 
  
I recommend that Members agree to GRANT Planning permission, subject to the 
suggested conditions, but pending the provision of further satisfactory architectural 
details for the front elevation, the final decision on which shall be delegated to the 
Head of Planning. Details of a satisfactory shopfront drawing(s) shall be attached to 
condition 2 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 26.7.23 and the hereby approved 
documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where varied by a 
condition attached to this consent: 
 
Application form dated 26.7.23 
Noise Assessment dated 12.10.23 
Developers Statement 
DRHMO/PA/001A, DRHMO/PA/002A, DRHMO/PA/003A, DRHMO/PA/004A, 
DRHMO/PA/005A, DRHMO/PA/006A, DRHMO/PA/007A , DRHMO/PA/010B, 
DRHMO/PA/011A, DRHMO/PA/012A 
Location Plan 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings 
approved by the Planning Authority. 
 
Pre-commencement Conditions 
 
3. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of the 
proposed noise mitigation measures shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be fully implemented and thereafter 
permanently retained in accordance with the approved details and written verification 
that they have been so implemented shall be provided by a suitably qualified person 
prior to beneficial occupation of any part of the development. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the occupiers from potential excessive 
noise disturbance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15 of 3139



During Building Works 
 
4. Prior to their installation on site, details of the finished external paint colours and 
sample of the proposed stone shall be submitted to and be agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall proceed in strict accordance with 
the approved details. 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the visual amenities of the area. 
 
5. Shopfront design detailing 
 
Before Occupation 
 
6. The soundproofing as shown on hereby approved plans shall be installed prior to 
beneficial occupation of any part of the scheme and thereafter permanently retained 
unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any variation. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the residential amenities of the occupiers. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
7. The area shown in the rear yard on the plan attached to this consent shall be 
permanently maintained clear of all obstructions, unless the Planning Authority gives 
prior written express consent for any variation. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that it is available at all times for the storage of refuse associated with the 
use of the building. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16 of 3140



Informative 
  

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the 
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to 
the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out 

   

• Please be aware of the Safe Dig service from United Utilities by contacting 
United Utilities at; UUSafeDig@uuplc.co.uk 

   

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. 
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further 
advice as to how to proceed. 

   

• The refuse bins should be stored within the rear yard and only placed outside 
on bin collection days. 

   

• The proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency 
Planning Area of the BAE site. Westmorland and Furness Council, in liaison 
with the site operator and the Office for Nuclear Regulation, have certain 
special arrangements for residents/business premises in this area and 
particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the 
appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at the site. The applicant 
is advised to liaise with the Joint Emergency Management and 
Resilience(JEMR)Team to allow for further discussion of available 
information: Senior Emergency Planning Officer, Joint Emergency 
Management and Resilience(JEMR)Team, Westmorland and Furness 
Council, Penrith Fire Station, Carleton Ave, Penrith , Cumbria , CA10 2FA 

   

 

Page 17 of 3141



Location Plan
Site Address: Stead And Simpson, 175-177, Dalton Road, Barrow-in-furness, LA14 1PX

Date Produced: 26-Jul-2023 Scale: 1:1250 @A4

Planning Portal Reference: PP-12279702v2

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS 100042766

2023/0464

Page 18 of 31

42



1:100@A3

Drawn - PW
Checked - NAS

Revision Notes

Website:
www.shepherdarchitectureandsurveying.co.uk

Telephone:
01229 481184

N/A

Existing Ground Floor Plan

Proposed Ground Floor Plan
SCALE 

0 1000 2000 3000 5000

1:100@A3

Existing Ground Floor
SCALE 

0 1000 2000 3000 5000

Barrow In Furness
LA14 1PX

A

EXISTING WALL

DEMOLITION

WALL CONSTRUCTION KEY 

Wall thickness = 150 mm

New windows opening 

Wall thickness = 100 mm

SH Shop units

Typical Shower tray size 

1000x800 mm

140mm thickness insulation to external and 
party walls for thermal upgrade

FD30s

HMO unit /House in multiple occupation  H

FD30S

New External wall

DP Existing Down Pipe

Back Yard

Cavendish Street

Dalton Road

175-177 Dalton Road
Commercial to Residential

Conversion (HMO)

Dividing of Ground Floor 
Retail space

Proposed Ground Floor
Plan

Back Yard

Dalton Road
33.91 m2

Shop 1

SH1

21.92 m2

Shop 2

SH2

8.44 m2

Welfare 2
Bike sto.

Disable
Toilet 2

3.30 m2

26.24 m2

Communal 
Kitchen

Fo
od

 L
oc

ke
r

Reused / Recycle

UP 

FD30S

FD30S

FD30S

Disable
Toilet 1
3.30 m2

FD30S

Storage Shelves

Service
 Void

Storage

8.66 m2

Welfare 1

Area

UP 

Fr
id

ge
Fr

id
ge

12 No bicycles (double
stacked on
proprietary rack system)

1100x1200 1100x1200

D
R

H
M

O
  PA  001A

increased bike store enclosure and
altered/ new  rear external doors

2023/0464

Page 19 of 31

43



Barrow In Furness

LA14 1PX

1:100@A3

Proposed First Floor Plan
SCALE 

0 1000 2000 3000 5000

1:100@A3

Existing First Floor Plan
SCALE 

0 1000 2000 3000 5000

Existing and Proposed
First floor Plan

Up

Up

Up

Up
Dn

Up

Beam

Void

Void

+230 mm

Ground floor

To Second floor
DP DP

EXISTING WALL

DEMOLITION

WALL CONSTRUCTION KEY 

New windows opening 

Non-acoustically separating internal wall

SH Shop units

Typical Shower tray size 

1000x800 mm

100 mm timber or metal stud independent  of existing wall

FD30s

HMO unit /House in multiple occupation  H

FD30S

New External wall

DP Existing Down Pipe

Acoustically separating internal wall

with Kooltherm K112 insulation between studs Kooltherm K118  37.5mm
over stud where plaster removed from existing wall ensure all gaps and holes are filled 

Party wall : use above system where party walls are one brick thick where half brick thick
apply addition 15 mm thick sound board

175-177 Dalton Road

D
R

H
M

O
 
 
P

A
 
 
 
0
0

2
A

Commercial to

Residential Conversion

(HMO)

Dividing of Ground Floor 

Retail space

Drawn - PW
Checked - NAS

Revision Notes

Website:
www.shepherdarchitectureandsurveying.co.uk

Telephone:
01229 481184

N/A
01/12/2023

Windows to be filled with
acoustic trickle vents

Permanent running silent
extract fan

13.86 m2

Bedroom 6

16.42 m2

Bedroom 4
H4

H6

TV

H1
Bedroom 1

16.39 m2

H3
Bedroom 3

13.88 m2

TV

Fridge

Brew Station

15.18 m2

Bedroom 5
H5

5.32 m2

H2
Bedroom 2

17.12 m2

Up

Smoke 

Slope
1:21 

6935

Communal  CorridorrampUp Up

+ 80 mm

+150 mm +150 mm

+ 230 mm

+ 230 mm

+ 80 mm

+ 80 mm

+ 230 mm

+ 0 mm
(Existing floor)

+ 0 mm

+ 0 mm

+ 0 mm + 0 mm

+ 0 mm

+ 0 mm

TV

TV

A

Up
Dn

Ground floor

Up
To Second 

floor

+ 0 mm

TV

Control

FD30S

+150 mm

Existing Beam

FD30S FD30S FD30S

FD30S

FD30S

FD30SFD30S

21
4

10
97

6323

See key notes for party
wall acoustic requirement

N

Page 20 of 31

44



Barrow In Furness

LA14 1PX

0 1000 2000 3000 50000 1000 2000 3000 5000

1:100@A3

Proposed Second Floor Plan
SCALE 1:100@A3

Existing Second Floor Plan
SCALE 

Existing Second floor Plan
Proposed Second floor Plan

Up

Void

+300 mm

Up
Dn

First floor

DP

Existing Beam

Balcony

EXISTING WALL

DEMOLITION

WALL CONSTRUCTION KEY 

New windows opening 

Non-acoustically separating internal wall

SH Shop units

Typical Shower tray size 

1000x800 mm

100 mm timber or metal stud independent  of existing wall

FD30s

HMO unit /House in multiple occupation  H

FD30S

New External wall

DP Existing Down Pipe

Acoustically separating internal wall

with Kooltherm K112 insulation between studs Kooltherm K118  37.5mm
over stud where plaster removed from existing wall ensure all gaps and holes are filled 

Party wall : use above system where party walls are one brick thick where half brick thick
apply addition 15 mm thick sound board

175-177 Dalton Road

D
R

H
M

O
 
 
P

A
 
 
0

0
3

A

Commercial to

Residential Conversion

(HMO)

Dividing of Ground Floor 

Retail space

Drawn - PW
Checked - NAS

Revision Notes

Website:
www.shepherdarchitectureandsurveying.co.uk

Telephone:
01229 481184

N/A

DN
+150 mm

13.86 m2

Bedroom 6

16.42 m2

Bedroom 4
H10

H12

H7
Bedroom 1

16.39 m2

H9
Bedroom 3

13.88 m2

TV

Fridge

Brew Station

15.18 m2

Bedroom 5
H11

5.32 m2

H8
Bedroom 2

17.12 m2

Up

6935

Communal  Corridor
Up Up

+150 mm +150 mm

+ 150mm

+ 300 mm

+ 0 mm
(Existing floor)

+ 0 mm

+ 0 mm

+ 0 mm + 0 mm

+ 0 mm

TV

TV

A

TV

FD30S

+150 mm

Up
+150 mm

+300 mm
(Existing floor)

+300 mm

+ 0 mm

(Existing floor)

Dn
First floor

Up

Void

Existing Beam

+300 mm +300 mm

FD30SFD30S

FD30S FD30S FD30S

FD30S FD30S

Smoke 
Control

10
97

6323

See key notes for party
wall acoustic requirement

21
4

TV

N

Windows to be filled with
acoustic trickle vents

Permanent running silent
extract fan

01/12/2023

Page 21 of 31

45



Ground floor Level

First Floor Level

Second Floor Level

Second Floor Landing

First Floor Landing Level

94
0

37
13

27
73

32
62

26
92

57
0

150

Second Floor Celing

30
00

Drawn - PW
Checked - NAS

Revision Notes

Website:
www.shepherdarchitectureandsurveying.co.uk

Telephone:
01229 481184

N/A

Barrow In Furness
LA14 1PX

1:100@A3

Proposed South Elevation
SCALE 1:100@A3

Proposed  West Elevation 
SCALE 

Commercial to Residential
Conversion (HMO)

Proposed South Elevation
Proposed  West Elevation 

Existing Doors and windows openings

Smoke vent automated windows (Obscured glazing)

Raised flat roof extension to increase internal head height

Dividing of Ground Floor 
Retail space

175-177 Dalton RoadProposed Material Schedule

External wall Render

Windows 

Window heads/cills 

Doors

Rain water Goods

Roof Covering

PVCu

Reconstituted stone/Colour concrete

Timber/Composite security door

GRP flat roof/Mineral Felt

PVCu

1:100@A3

Proposed  West Elevation 
SCALE 

Roof raised

Other propertie

Existing chimney removed
Existing flat roof raised 

Down pipe

to increase internal head height.
Gutter

D
R

H
M

O
  PA  011A

new  rear external doors

2023/0464

Page 22 of 31

46



Drawn - PW
Checked - NAS

Revision Notes

Website:
www.shepherdarchitectureandsurveying.co.uk

Telephone:
01229 481184

N/A

Barrow In Furness
LA14 1PX

Proposed Section A

1:75@A3SCALE 

Existing Section A-A

Proposed Section ACommercial to Residential
Conversion (HMO)

Dividing of Ground Floor 

Raised flat roof extension to increase internal head height

Existing Doors and windows openings

Joists span between wall without affecting head height Retail space

   1:75@A3SCALE 

10 Going @ 223 mm

Bike Store
1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15

20
21

22
23

25

1431

SCALE 

Proposed Section A-A
5 

Ri
se

r @
 1

88
 m

m

Beam 

Brick Wall on Beam

Landing

4 Going @ 223 mm

11
 R

is
er

 @
 1

84
 m

m

5 
Ri

se
r @

 1
84

 m
m

26
27

28
29

30
31

32
33

34
35

36
37

38
3920

29

27
98

33
94

23
93

12
 R

is
er

 @
 1

88
 m

m
5 

Ri
se

r @
 2

00
 m

m

4 Going  @ 223 mm

4 Going  @ 223 mm

New support beam

Existing Roof

21
50

30
01

35
13

Ground floor Level

First Floor Level

Second Floor Level

Second Floor Landing

First Floor Landing Level

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
1694

0

37
13

27
73

17
18

32
62

26
92

57
0

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29
30

31

32

15
0

15
90

Beam 

33

Brick Wall on Beam

22
42

Second Floor Ceiling

Existing Roof

D
R

H
M

O
   PA   012A

increased bike store enclosure and
altered/ new  rear external doors

2023/0464

Page 23 of 31

47



Barrow In Furness
LA14 1PX
175-177 Dalton Road

1:100@A3

Proposed North Elevation
SCALE 1:100@A3

Proposed East Elevation 
SCALE 

Proposed North Elevation
Proposed East Elevation 

Shop unit 1

Shop unit 2 

HMO /House in multiple occupation  

Proposed Material Schedule

External wall Painted render to match existing

Windows 

Window heads/cills 

Doors

Rain water Goods

Roof Covering

PVCu/To match existing style

Reconstituted stone/Colour concrete

Timber/Composite security door

Existing slate mineral felt to flat roof

PVCu

D
R

H
M

O
  PA  010B

Commercial to
Residential Conversion

(HMO)
Dividing of Ground Floor 

Retail space
Drawn - PW
Checked - NAS

Revision Notes

Website:
www.shepherdarchitectureandsurveying.co.uk

Telephone:
01229 481184

N/A

Ground floor Level

First Floor Level

Second Floor Level

Second Floor Landing

First Floor Landing Level

94
0

37
13

27
73

32
62

26
92

57
0

150

Second Floor Celing

30
00

Step reduce from 200 mm
to 150 mm high

SHOP UNIT2 HMO SHOP UNIT 1

01/12/2023

Page 24 of 31

48



 

 

Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies 
 

 

Note to Members 
 

 

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 

agenda today. 
 

 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 2023 
 

 

NPPF 011 

Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

For plan-making this means that: 

a) all plans should promote a sustainable pattern of development that seeks to: meet the 

development needs of their area; align growth and infrastructure; improve the 

environment; mitigate climate change (including by making effective use of land in urban 

areas) and adapt to its effects; 
 

 

b) strategic policies should, as a minimum, provide for objectively assessed needs for 

housing and other uses, as well as any needs that cannot be met within neighbouring 

areas, unless: 
 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a strong reason for restricting the overall scale, type or distribution 

of development in the plan area; or 
 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

 

For decision-taking this means: 
 

 

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 

without delay; or 
 

 

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 

important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless: 
 

 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 
 

 Page 25 of 3149



NPPF 130 

Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 
 

 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 

but over the lifetime of the development; 
 

 

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 

effective landscaping; 
 

 

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 

innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
 

 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 

spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 

places to live, work and visit; 
 

 

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount 

and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 

facilities and transport networks; and 
 

 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 

well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where 

crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or 

community cohesion and resilience. 
 

 

NPPF 203 

The effect of an application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset 

should be taken into account in determining the application. In weighing applications that 

directly or indirectly affect non-designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be 

required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the 

heritage asset. 

 

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 
 

 

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 

ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 

find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 

approved wherever possible. 
 

 

The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 

an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 

environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 

choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 

Page 26 of 3150



to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 

environmental gains for the Borough. 
 

 

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 

delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 

date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 
 

 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 

outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 
 

 

b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 

development should be restricted. 
 

 

 

Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 

In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 

Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 

meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 

development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 
 

 

a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 

integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 

purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 

facilities; 
 

 

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 

junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 
 

 

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 

proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 

infrastructure; 
 

 

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 

vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 

development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 
 

 

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 

privacy, security and natural light; 
 

 

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 

development;

Page 27 of 3151



 

 

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 

related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 

environmental assets; 
 

 

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
 

 

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 
 

 

j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 
 

 

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 

accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 

systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 
 

 

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 

environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 
 

 

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 
 

 

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 

must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 

Plan objectives by alternative means. 
 

 

Policy DS5 - Design 

New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 

attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 

must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 

the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 

Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they: 
 

 

a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 

adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 

Documents; 
 

 

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 

setting; 
 

 

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it;

Page 28 of 3152



 

 

d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 

that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 
 

 

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 

placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 

motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 
 

 

f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 

structured building layout; 
 

 

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 

requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 
 

 

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 

sourced wherever possible; 
 

 

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 

key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 

hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 

creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 
 

 

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 

and public safety; 
 

 

k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 

contribute to design objectives; 
 

 

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 

people with disabilities; 
 

 

m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 
 

 

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 

water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 

of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 
 

 

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 

provision of appropriate roof pitches.

Page 29 of 3153



 

 

 

 

Policy H26 - Large Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and the Subdivision of 

Dwellings 

Proposals for the subdivision of dwellings and those which involve the creation of large 

houses in multiple occupation (over 6 occupiers) will be acceptable providing that: 
 

 

a) Such proposals do not lead to the unacceptable loss of good quality family housing, 

taking into account housing needs identified in the current Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment; 
 

 

b) There will be no unacceptable impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring 

properties, especially with respect to privacy, noise and other disturbance; 
 

 

c) The proposal would not adversely affect the character of the building or the 

surrounding area, for example through an unacceptable increase in on-street parking; 
 

 

d) The proposed internal design ensures that units will have access to sufficient natural 

light, ventilation, privacy, outlook and indoor amenity space; 
 

 

e) The proposal does not lead to inappropriate stacking of rooms; 
 

 

f) Adequate suitably screened space is provided for the storage of refuse, recycling bins 

and cycles; 
 

 

g) Outdoor amenity space is provided where possible; 
 

 

h) There is adequate access from the residential unit to both the front and rear of the 

building; 
 

 

i) The proposal would not lead to an over-concentration of similar uses resulting in the 

loss of social and community cohesion; and 
 

 

j) The site is within easy reach of public transport and community facilities. 
 

 

The design principles set out in the Development Strategy chapter should be followed 

where appropriate. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 30 of 3154



Policy R1 - The Vision for Barrow and Dalton Town Centres 

Proposals for development or alterations within Barrow and Dalton town centres must  

support the Local Plan Vision for those areas. 
 

 

Policy R17 - Conversion of upper floors to residential units within the town centre 

The conversion of upper floors to residential use will be permitted where this will assist 

the regeneration of the area and will bring back vacant properties into use subject to the 

site being capable of providing an acceptable level of residential amenity and access for 

future occupiers. Any external alteration, such as the addition of front doors etc, must 

not harm the character and appearance of the town centre. 
 

 

Developments that rely solely on access from a back street will not be permitted unless 

the scheme provides for suitable upgrading of the back street. 
 

 

 

Policy R2 - Barrow Town Centre 

For the purposes of interpreting the relevant policies in this chapter, Barrow's Town 

Centre is identified in Appendix I. 
 

 

Policy R3 - Barrow’s Primary Shopping Area 

The Primary Shopping Area is the focus for retail uses in Barrow. It's boundaries are 

shown in Appendix I. Proposals for other main town centre uses (i.e. not A1) will be 

supported within the defined primary shopping area, provided that: 
 

 

a) The proposal complements the retail function and makes a positive contribution to the 

vitality, viability and diversity of the town centre, in terms of maintaining active 

continuous retail frontages, signage and hours of opening; 
 

 

b) The proposal would not give rise, either alone or cumulatively, to a detrimental effect 

on the character and amenity of the primary shopping area, or cause an unacceptable 

harm to the amenity of town centre residents; and 
 

 

c) The proposal will not have an unacceptable impact upon the local highway network 

and acceptable levels of parking are available nearby. 

Page 31 of 3155



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

19th December 2023 
 

Extra Information Book  
 

 
Page App. No 

 
Address 
 

2 2023/0464 175-177 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness 
 

 
 

57



��������	��
������
��������		 ��������������������	����	�����		���
��������������	������
� ����	����!	�"�����	#	����	�������
	�	���$%����&'�	�	�	��	�()�*	����+,-.,-,/.-010�����������2345233�6789:;�<:7=>�+7??:@5A;5BC?;DEE>�FCGH?A7>�IJ20�2KL
����M�����K?:N:ED=�O:;PD?EA:;�:Q�O:GGD?OA78�N?DGAEDE�RCED�O87EE�SR7TT�9:�2,�;:U�HD=?::GVWX�RYCA5ZD;D?AET�79�QA?E9�7;=�EDO:;=�Q8::?E�7;=�@D8Q7?D�Q7OA8A9ADE�79�[?:C;=�Q8::?U�<7AEA;[�9\D?::Q�\DA[\9�9:�9\D�?D7?�:Q�9\D�N?:ND?9]�H]�2�GD9?D�7;=�?DG:=D8�:Q�87?[D�D̂AE9A;[�[?:C;=�Q8::?�E\:NC;A9�9:�9@:�EG788D?�E\:N�C;A9E�7;=�7EE:OA79D=�D̂9D?;78�789D?79A:;E�R7GD;=D=�=DEO?AN9A:;TU<DN:?9�_K8D7ED�QA;=�7997O\D=�9\D�=DPD8:ND?̀E�ECNN:?9A;[�E979DGD;9�@\AO\�AE�?DQD??D=�9:�A;�9\D�:QQAOD?̀E?DN:?9U�

58



DEVELOPERS STATEMENT  

COMMERCIAL TO HMO CONVERSION OF 175 – 177 DALTON ROAD, BARROW 

 

Dear Sir/Madam,  

I write this letter to you in regard to our planning application B20/2023/0464. As can be seen from 

the application, we plan on converting the derelict building into a 12 bed hmo and 2 separate 

commercial units on the ground floor.  

Having looked at the building originally and consulted with our architect we felt this proposal best 

suited the building layout and needs of the town centre.  

As you are probably already aware, the town centre has gradually become less populated over the 

years with lots of businesses, including the larger chains struggling to continue to operate due to 

rapid decline in footfall in the town, which has resulted in sales decreasing, which has resulted in 

many of these businesses and buildings closing.  

This lack of footfall is a problem in a lot of towns and cities across the UK due to a lot of people now 

using the internet for their shopping in certain sectors e.g. Clothes shopping. Lots of businesses are 

therefore struggling to compete in this market.  

This has obviously had a negative impact on the town with many buildings now being derelict, which 

results in some areas looking an eye sore. The knock-on effect of this has seen less people visiting the 

town centre, which obviously has a knock-on effect to other businesses struggling financially.  

A main factor of this could be the business rates these businesses were paying, which made it 

financially un-viable.  

The businesses that tend to survive are the smaller ones that aren’t having to compete with the 

internet e.g. Coffee shops, Beauty salons, Hairdressers, Restaurants and food shops etc.  

We feel by carrying out these type of conversions that we can create smaller commercial units on the 

ground floor, which enables the rateable values of these units to decrease to a level whereby smaller 

businesses can qualify for business rates relief, which gives them more of a chance to survive.  

Also by creating residential units on the upper floors, this will create more footfall in the town centre, 

which should benefit the businesses in the town.  

This strategy is championed by the government, which is evident with the recent permitted 

development rights for these type of buildings.  

On a personal level, I am a local developer who has been in and around the town for over 30 years 

and has seen the changes over the years. 

I started developing properties 6 years ago, which has resulted in carrying out 3 commercial 

conversions of similar type properties in the town centre. It has by no means been easy and 

sometimes very stressful, however seeing the end results and finish of these once tired and derelict 

properties has made it worthwhile.  

2 of these properties have been converted into semi-commercial properties, whereby we have 2 

commercial units on the ground floor of Dalton Road (82 and 243 Dalton Road).  

2023/0464

59



These businesses are smaller local businesses who seem to be doing well and providing a service to 

the town. 

The upper floors are residential, which results in these people using the other businesses in the town 

centre.  

The buildings are also modern and make the town look more aesthetically pleasing.  

I have spent over £1,000,000 on purchasing and converting these properties, which has been mostly 

funded by outside investment.  

I have also whenever practically possible used sourced and purchased the materials from the local 

suppliers within the town and used local trades for the majority of the works.  

I hope it can be seen that I am trying to provide a good service to the town whilst also bringing in 

outside investment into the town to develop these derelict buildings.  

I understand that hmo’s are sometimes deemed as a negative to towns with locals not always 

wanting these type of properties.  

I understand the reasons why and sympathise in certain instances, however I also feel these type of 

properties is beneficial in certain areas.  

In Barrow town centre you don’t tend to see a lot of locals wanting to live in the town centre itself, 

however people travelling into the area seem to want to stay central.  

Having these type of properties in town centres can therefore only be a positive to increase footfall 

to the town centre, which results in more footfall to other supporting businesses.  

Having too many hmo’s can be seen as a bad thing, however I feel there is still a need for ones that 

are well designed and are of a high standard. 

I would welcome any request for visits to our previous developments so you can see the high 

standard we provide. 

 However if this isn’t possible I’d like to refer you to the attachment photograph’s so you can see how 

we have converted these type of properties.  

I hope you can support our application and also welcome any further questions.  

Kind regards   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2023/0464

60



52 Manchester St: 

 

Before: 

 

 

 

After: 

 

 

 

2023/0464

61



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2023/0464

62



82 Dalton Road: 

 

Before: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After: 

 

 

 

2023/0464

63



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2023/0464

64



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

243 Dalton Road: 

 

Before: 

 

 

 

 

 

2023/0464

65



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

After: 

 

 

 

 

2023/0464

66



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2023/0464

67



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2023/0464

68



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2023/0464

69



This page is intentionally left blank



Barrow-in-Furness 
Local Area Planning Committee 

 

Report Title:  Appeal Decision – 52 Paradise Street, Barrow in 
Furness 

Meeting: Barrow in Furness Local Area Planning Committee 

Meeting Date: 19th December 2023 

Report Author: Jennifer Dickinson 

Lead Cabinet Member(s):  

Wards Affected Old Barrow Ward 

PUBLIC, PART EXEMPT 
OR FULLY EXEMPT 

Public 

List of Appendices  
 

Appendix A:  Appeal Decision 
APP/W0910/W/23/3319147 

Appendix B:  Committee report dated 17th January 
2023 (Appendix B) 

 

1.        Executive Summary 

1.1 The decision on the appeal for 52 Paradise Street, Barrow in Furness has 
been received from the Planning Inspectorate.  The appeal has been allowed 
subject to conditions. 

2. Recommendation 

For the reasons set out in this report, it is recommended that -  

2.1 The contents of this report are noted by Members. 

3. Information: the Rationale and Evidence  

3.1 An application for the conversion of 52 Paradise Street, Barrow in Furness to 
a 14 bedroom house in multiple occupation (Use Class Sui Generis) including 
works to convert existing floors, loft conversion, creation of roof terrace with 
balustrade and 1.8m wall, construction of dormer, hip to gable extension and 
new roof lights and new front entrance was refused, against officer 
recommendation, by legacy Barrow in Furness Borough Council Planning 
Committee on 17th January 2023.  See report attached as Appendix B. 

3.2 The reason for refusal was: 

3.2.1 In the opinion of the Planning Authority, approval of the proposal would 
be contrary to Local Plan Policy H26 in that it would lead to an over 
concentration of similar uses with resultant adverse impact on the 
residential character, amenity and parking in the local area. 

71

Agenda Item 8



 

3.3 A subsequent appeal under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate by the applicants. No 
application was made by appellants for an award of costs. 

3.4 The application was dealt with through the written representations procedure 
and the Inspector has independently assessed the application following 
submission of information from both parties (The Council and the Appellant).  
A decision was issued on 8th December 2023 by the Planning Inspectorate to 
allow the appeal subject to conditions. 

3.3 The notice is attached as Appendix A which explains the rationale of the 
Inspector’s decision.  

4. Link to Council Plan Priorities: (People, Climate, Communities, Economy 
and Culture, Customers, Workforce)  

4.1 In terms of the Council’s priorities it will provide accommodation within the 
town centre which will introduce greater footfall to the town centre to assist the 
economy.  The sustainable location of the site close to public transport should 
assist in reducing reliance upon the private car. 

5. Consultation Outcomes (with services, ward councillors & public 
consultation where required 

5.1 Not applicable 

6. Alternative Options Considered 

6.1 Not applicable 

7. Financial Implications and risk 

7.1 Not applicable 

8. Legal & Governance Implications 

8.1 Not applicable 

 

72



 

9. Human Resources Implications  

9.1  Staff time spent on appeals is a cost resource to the Council. 

  
10. Equality & Diversity Implications (including the public sector equality duty, 

Armed Forces Families, Care Leavers and Health inequalities implications) 

10.1 Not applicable.  This report is for information only and these will have been 
considered by the decision-maker, as necessary. 

11. Background Information & Sources (used in preparation of this Report) 

11.1 Appeal decision (Appendix A) 

11.2 Committee report dated 17th January 2023 (Appendix B) 

 

73



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

Appeal Decision  

Site visit made on 23 November 2023  
By A Hickey MA MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 8 December 2023 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/W0910/W/23/3319147 
52 Paradise Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria LA14 1JG  
• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr Clark and Mr Gregory against the decision of Barrow-in- 

Furness Borough Council. 

• The application Ref B20/2022/0709, dated 6 October 2022, was refused by notice dated 

17 January 2023. 

• The development proposed is described as conversion of existing building (Use Class 

F1) to 14 Bedroom house in multiple occupation (Use Class Sui Generis). Works include 

conversion of existing floors, loft conversion, creation of roof terrace with balustrade 

and 1.8m wall, construction of dormer, hip to gable extension and new roof lights and 

new front entrance. 

Decision 

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for conversion of 

existing building (Use Class F1) to 14 Bedroom house in multiple occupation 
(Use Class Sui Generis). Works include conversion of existing floors, loft 

conversion, creation of roof terrace with balustrade and 1.8m wall, construction 
of dormer, hip to gable extension and new roof lights and new front entrance at 
52 Paradise Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria LA14 1JG in accordance with 

the terms of the application, Ref B20/2022/0709, dated 6 October 2022, 
subject to the conditions in the attached schedule. 

Preliminary Matters 

2. The address in the banner heading above has been taken from the application 
form, albeit slightly reordered. 

Main Issue 

3. The main issue is the suitability of the site for the proposal, having regard to 

the development plan’s approach to the provision of houses in multiple 
occupation. 

Reasons 

4. The appeal site comprises a large end terrace property located on a 
predominantly residential street at the junction of Harrison Street. The appeal 

site is also located within the defined town centre and is close to a number of 
services and facilities, including public transport.   

5. Barrow Borough Local Plan (BBLP) Policy H26 establishes a number of criteria 

that will be taken into account for development proposals for Large Houses in 
Multiple Occupation (HMO). The parts most relevant to this appeal are b), c) 

and i).  

74

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
lmoscrop_1
Typewritten text
Appendix A



Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/23/3319147

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

6. Criterion b) of Policy H26 states there will be no unacceptable impact on the 

residential amenity of neighbouring properties, especially with respect to 
privacy, noise and other disturbance. The most recent use of the building, from 

the evidence presented, is that of an office that was open to the public.  

7. This use of the building is likely to have generated a large number of comings 
and goings, including vehicles, during the day. As such, a decrease in 

movements could be reasonably expected from the appeal proposal. The 
proposed development would generate additional comings and goings into the 

evening and at night. However, I do not consider that given the appeal 
building’s location at the end of the terrace, the scale of such activity in respect 
of noise or disturbance would be such that it would cause any material harm to 

the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties in what is an established 
residential area. 

8. Furthermore, having considered the submitted drawings and the appeal 
building’s relationship with surrounding properties, there is no substantive 
evidence before me to conclude the proposed scheme would result in any 

unacceptable loss of privacy to the occupiers of nearby properties. Accordingly, 
the requirements of criterion b) are met. 

9. Criterion c) seeks to ensure that HMO proposals do not adversely affect the 
character of the building or the surrounding area. 

10. The proposed development would see a number of changes to external 

elevations and the roof. These include the relocation of the entrance, 
alterations to the roof, including a gable with dormers inserted and a roof 

terrace. The proposed changes to the elevations are minimal and would still 
allow the form of the original building to be read and understood. The works to 
the roof are more substantial. However, these would largely be restricted from 

public view by the L-shape of the finished roof form. As such, the changes 
would not unduly affect the character of the building or surrounding area.  

11. At the time of my site visit, mid-morning on a Thursday which I appreciate is 
only a snapshot in time, there were a number of vehicles parked on the roads 
surrounding the site. Signage advising permits was also in place. Nevertheless, 

there were several areas where on-street parking spaces were available. 
Additionally, there was also availability on nearby private car parks, including 

the one adjacent to the appeal building.  

12. I do not know what level of car ownership future occupiers may have and this 
may fluctuate over time. Nonetheless, there is the potential for each occupier 

to have access to a car and this could lead to a number of additional vehicles 
parking in the area. However, from my observations on site there is parking 

available on nearby private car parks and on the surrounding streets to 
accommodate the potential increase in vehicle numbers. 

13. Furthermore, as the site is readily accessible to alternative public transport, 
including buses and trains, future occupiers may choose not to own a private 
vehicle. In any event, should this not be the case, the level of parking required 

could be sufficiently absorbed within the surrounding area without detriment to 
the character of the area. As such, criterion b) is satisfied. 

14. Criterion i) seeks to avoid proposals that would lead to an over-concentration 
of similar uses resulting in the loss of social and community cohesion.  

75

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/23/3319147

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

15. I note the concerns of the Council and other interested parties about the 

location and number of HMOs, including unlicensed HMOs in the locality, and 
the effects of such concentrations. However, from the map provided by the 

Council1, even taking into consideration the HMO at 9 Harrison Street, the 
number of licensed HMOs is well dispersed within the surrounding area.  
Outside of the shopping area and within the surrounding residential streets, I 

observed quiet and well-kept urban street scenes of what appeared to be 
predominantly family homes. As such, even if I were to accept there are 

unlicensed HMOs which have not been identified, there was negligible aural or 
visual evidence, such as litter, noise or parking congestion, one would expect in 
an area with an imbalance towards HMOs.  

16. I have not been supplied with any substantive evidence to demonstrate that 
existing HMOs within the area have resulted in a significant increase in crime. 

Having regard to the nature of the application there is no cogent evidence that 
the proposed HMO would attract or be likely to be occupied by persons more 
likely to commit crimes or to carry out anti-social behaviour. Additionally, there 

is no convincing evidence to demonstrate the proposed development would 
place an unacceptable demand on local services. The proposal would therefore 

satisfy criterion i) of Policy H26.  

17. Overall, I conclude that it has been shown that the appeal site is a suitable 
location for the proposed development, having regard to the development 

plan’s approach to the provision of HMOs. The proposal would accord with 
Policy H26 of the BBLP. 

Conditions 

18. I have considered the conditions suggested by the Council, having regard to 
the six tests set out in the National Planning Policy Framework. For the sake of 

clarity and enforceability, I have amended the suggested conditions as 
appropriate. 

19. In addition to the standard implementation condition, it is necessary, in the 
interests of precision, to define the plans with which the scheme should accord. 
It is necessary, in the interests of the character and appearance of the area, to 

secure bin storage. In the interests of living conditions of future occupiers, a 
condition is necessary for soundproofing.  

Conclusion 

20. The proposed development would accord with the development plan as a whole 
and there are no other considerations, including the Framework, that indicate 

that I should take a different decision other than in accordance with this. I 
conclude that the appeal should be allowed. 

 

A Hickey  

INSPECTOR 

 
 

 
1 Ref: Appendix 1 - 52 Paradise Street, Barrow-in-Furness LA14 1JG – Appeal 3319147, dated 11/10/2023 

76

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/23/3319147

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

 

 
Schedule of Conditions 

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years from the 
date of this decision. 
 

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved drawings 22031-300-A, 22031-301, 22031-310-A, 22031-306-A, 

22031-308-A, 22031-309-A, 22031-305-B, 22031-304-C and 22031-307-A.  
 

3) The bin storage area, as shown on approved drawing 22031-304-C, shall be 

implemented prior to any occupation of the building and thereafter retained as 
such. 

 
4) Prior to the occupation of the property, the soundproofing as detailed on 

approved plans 22031-307-A, 22031-308-A, and 22031-310-A shall be 

installed and permanently retained. 

 

End  

77

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


�������������� �����������	
���	�����	
���� 
���������������������������������  ���!��"���
���������

����������� �����#������$%$&&$'�%&()�)$$*+,-�./*0��$1$)2$&�3433�����56789�5:6��8:;<8=8:>�� �?8�5@@<7A5;7B:9�C7;?7:�;?79�D8@BD;�?5E8�F88:�9GF=7;;86�HBD�68;8D=7:5;7B:�G:68D�;?8��BC:�5:6��BG:;DI�
<5::7:J��A;9�5:6�599BA75;86�<8J79<5;7B:��� �<<�5@@<7A5;7B:9�7:�;?79�D8@BD;�5D8�K�8<8J5;86L�;B�;?79��B==7;;88�FG;�A5:�F8�=BE86�K�B:M�8<8J5;86L�FI�5��8=F8D�BH�;?8��B==7;;88�G:68D�;?8�;8D=9�56B@;86�HBD�;?8�#A?8=8�BH��8<8J5;7B:�5@@DBE86�FI��BG:A7<>��N;?��5I>��OOP���:I�9GA?�=B;7B:�:8869�;B�F8�5AA8@;86�FI�5�=5QBD7;I�BH��8=F8D9�BH�;?8��B==7;;88�@D898:;�R�BG:A7<>�S;?��GJG9;>��OOTU���<<�5@@<7A5;7B:9�<8H;�59��8<8J5;86�C7<<�F8�68A7686�FI�;?8��B==7;;88�5:6�C7<<�:B;�F8�9GFQ8A;�;B�AB:H7D=5;7B:�FI��BG:A7<��� �?8�5@@<7A5;7B:�@<5:�:G=F8D9�5<9B�D8H8D�;B�H7<89�HBD�;?8�@GD@B989�BH�F5AVJDBG:6�@5@8D9����WXY�Z[Z\[]�̂_�̀a[�bc\def�gâ�geha[h�̀̂�ihj�i�kc[h̀êXl�Zij[�][b][h[X̀ìêXh�̂]�b][h[X̀�i�m[bc̀ìêX�̂]�b[̀èêX�ì�̀aeh�Z[[̀eXn�hâcdm�ibbdY�̀̂�m̂�ĥ�\Y�X̂�dì[]�̀aiX�op�X̂ X̂l�̀a][[�ĝ ]jeXn�miYh�\[_̂][�̀a[�mì[�̂_�̀a[�qdiXXeXn�r̂ ZZè̀[[�Z[[̀eXns�tX_̂]ZìêX�̂X�âg�̀̂�Zij[�̀a[�ibbdefìêX�fiX�\[�̂\̀ieX[m�\Y�ue[geXn�̀a[�r̂ cXfedvh�g[\hè[�gggs\i]]̂g\fsn̂uscj�̂]�\Y�f̂X̀if̀eXn�̀a[�qdiXXeXn�wcheX[hh�xcbb̂]̀�y[iZ�ì�f̂Xhcd̀bdiXXeXnz\i]]̂g\fsn̂uscj�̂]�\Y�̀[d[bâX[�̂X�{opp|�}~��{�ss���� ��������������� �$�'�(%��$�$�(�)$,*���,�-$)$,*��
78

lmoscrop_2
Typewritten text

Appendix B



���������������	
����
���������������������������������� �

��������� !�"#�$%&'()�*��������������� + !(�, ��-�*�.����������--)(//�*�0���
�
��1��2�������
���34��456���11��6�7��
�89�:��;<� = /(�>??��()�*�;����������@A��1���B)"�"/ ��*����C��1��������D�1���
�76�	���
�EF1���	
11�5�G�����:���������H�61������6	��I	���@@6I
�����EF1���	
11�26�1�<�����1G��J��A1���@	6���@��C��1��������D�1���
��	���1K�	����@��C��1���K�@��
�����������������
@��3��H�7
	61��
���
�����L��3
		K�@��1��6@��������������K�H�I����

7	���D���1����
�����3������	�
H�1�
�����3�����������
�@���M )-�*�N���I��	�J
��� B )�/O�*�P�9������� #!�*�Q���	
�A�
���Q��<��
��R������9
����� �S(#!�*�Q��9��R���@A6IK���	
����1�
��<��8����T! !%!")U�+ !(�*������������ V(�"&&(#- !�"#�*�<�
�����3��H�@��������1�W ))"X�B� ##�#S�Y%'� ����V(�(Z #!�B"����(/� #-�[%�- #�(�\%���-(! ��/�"?�!O(��"����(/���/!(-�'(�"X� )(��#��%-(-��#�!O(� ��(#-�]�$ !�"# ��B"����(/����P
����
	��	
����
���	�@R�5�
��3��A������4��
�

�
IH��������P
����
	��	
����
���	�@R�5�
��3��A������4��
�

�
IH��:�����P
����
	��	
����
���	�@R�5�
��3��A������4��
�

�
IH�����:��P
����
	��	
����
���	�@R�5�
��3��A������4��
�

�
IH������̂"� ��B� #�B"����(/�����
���3�����6
H�8�@
	��	
�����.4�����4���	�@R��2��4���6�@�	_1�@�������������161�
��
7	����C�	�I���������
���3�����6
H�8�@
	��	
�����.4�����4���	�@R��2��4�261�
��
7	����C�	�I������������
�����
���3�����6
H�8�@
	��	
�����.4�����4���	�@R��20�4���1�
��:���
���3�����6
H�8�@
	��	
�����.4�����4���	�@R�N�.�4�8
�
��N�61�1����Q6	��I	��@̀@6I
�����ENQ̀ 1G�
����H��267��C�1��������3�		��
1�0���
���3�����6
H�8�@
	��	
�����.4�����4���	�@R�N�:�4�9@@�11����76�	���
1�
����I���1I
@�1�
79



� ��������������	
����
������������������������
�������������
���������������	
����
������������������������
��������������� ������� �
 ����!�����"#$$%&'�()�*%+,�-..#/.�0�������
�������� �����1��� ����2��2���������2� �� �����32�
 ��	2���������� ��������4��	����3��� ������
��� ��
�32����
���� ���������
�2���
������2����� � �������4��5������
��4���������
�
��
������4���2�����
6���
�������1�� 1���6�2��4�
�6������6���1� ���1���	�
�
������������ ����32�
 ��1� ���2��2������7 ����������
���8(,�*%9/&+%:�;(,.+</&%9+(,.�0���� � 	���1�2� �� ����1	 	����

	2������=�  ����
�4�����	������ ������
���� ���6�1����7�32��� ���2�����������1���������� �2�����
�2��3� �������� �
	���� ������2�
����>/.?(,./�9(�@#A:+B+9'�%,<�;(,.#:9%9+(,.�8/+CDA(#&.�;(,.#:9/<�"9&//9�8%$/�@&(?/&9+/.�E��������F ��� � ��6���6���6��G6��H6���6���6��I6���6���6���6��G6��H6���6��I6��6���6��G6��H6���6�H6��6�I6�F�	 ������ �G�6���� >/.?(,./.� "#??(&9� JAK/B9� 8/#9&%:���� �� �I� �����F� ���� �
�����2�������72����
�������������"#$$%&'�()�>/.?(,./.�L����4����
��4��� �����3����  ���1��3����������� �����E��������F ��� ���0����� � �� �� � ���������
	���� �����2��2�� �����2��� ��
����G�5���E=MN����� ���� ��� �����2� �� ��������� �������
	���� ���5���
��� ������0����������
��
������4��O�P� 0���2����	������2�����
�
�4��� �� � ����
��������2�����������������1� ���� ��� ���0����� � �� ������������������2�
����4����5������� �� � ������� ��2�����
�2��3� ��
���� �2�����	 ����� �������3���
	���� ������
80



� �� ��������	
����
��
���������
������������������
	�
�����������
������
������������
��������	��	�����������	������������������
��������������
���
������	����	�	��������	�����������������	�����	���
����	�
	��������������
����������������
	������
���
�����
����������
���
�����	��
�����		������������
���
���������
��	�������������������	��
������
����	��	�����	��
�����������	���������
���
����������
	�������������	�
����������	����
���
�����	������������� ����
�	������		��������������������	�
����
���
������������	��
������
�!��
�����������	����!������	���
�������
��
��
�������������
�	����	���	��"#$%&'(%)'*&(�+*&(,-)./�+*&(,-)..�0�1�2
�	����3�1�����
�
�4��

�
��5�������67������8�0���� �0�������9��
����60�����
��9�
	���8�0���� �0�������9��
����6:;58�<�

��4����
�	�
�0���� �0�������9��
����64��

�
��4����
8�9�������9��
	
�9��
����61�����
�
�4��

�
�8�9�������9��
	
�9��
����6:��� �
�8�5����������7�������=�����	��
�67������8�>
�	���>	���	����64��

�
��?�����
8����@'()�*A�"#$%&'(%)'*&�B.(C*&(.(��D%##*E�D*#*,$F�+*,&G'-�HD,'-/'&$�+*&)#*-I�JKLMJLNJNN�0�����
��������	��
�����������������������	��������������D%##*E�D*#*,$F�+*,&G'-�HOP"I�NMLMMLNJNN�Q���
��
���������
��
�������
����	���4��

�
���������	��
�����R��4��������2	���	!�0���� ��S���
���
�����	��	�	����������	
� ��������������;�
��	��
�:;5�?���
����
��������:����
����	��TTU��
�� ����	��������������	�������
� �	��	�������������������������
�����
�������
	����S� ����������	������������	�������� �
����
���
�V��������
�����
�	������
	�
���� �	������������	
����������	��	���������	
!��������
�	�� ��������	�	������������	
��
�	���������	
���
������	��?�9�=2�:����
�3W����2���	
�X����
����X����
��
	�X������
����	�	��	����������������������������R�������������
������	���
��
���	�����
���������	������������	���
�������������������
!�������������������������
��������Y������������������
� �������� ��	� ��������	���
81



���������	
���
����
����
�
����
��

�����	
��
��
�
��������
�������������������������������
��������	
�
����������������������
����
�
���������������
��	��
����
�
� ����
�!��"����
��
�
����	

��#
��������$
��	
������

$
����%������
����
��	

����
��
�����

����
�
���
��
�	�����
��������	
�������������
��
������
���
�#
���&
�����
����
��������
�
����������
��	

����
��
��������

���'�
�	��%
��������
������������������
�������
���	
��
��
��
���
�����
��
��
�������
�(�)*+,-./�)0*123�)0*14.5�67+8-98143�:5/11.19;�<=><=>?=??�(@�
�A"B����
�����
$
�
��#%���
���
$���
��
����
�C������
���B�
��
��%�D�
���
��
�������D�#	������
�����
�!����E�C
��	���
����@�
�
���
��
�
#F
���
����
���
���
�
�
���
$
	
��
���#��
��
����
����
�����
����
$��
��#��������
�	��#
��
�
���������
���
�
�
���
$
	
��
������������
�����������
�G
���	
��B�
��
��%�D	�������"�
��
��A"B��H��#����H
���%�H
����	�����	����
���������
����
�
�
���
��������
�I����
��
��J��	
���C
��	���
�����$
��
��������
���	�������
�
������
����
��
���
���
���K#����
�����
���
������������
�������������	������
���
�����������
�
��������������

�	
���
�����
�
����
�����
�����
�����
���
���&
������
�
$
���
����������
��������
����
��"��
�����	%����
�	��#
�����
��	����%
���
�	��������
�
$
���
����
����	�����
��#
��������
$
�����$��
���
����	�������
�	����
�����������
����
��
��		
���
�������
����������
��(��)*+,-./�)0*123�)0*14.5�6L.9MN/3O�P�QQRS;�<=><<>?=??�(@���&�%
���
��%
����
���	����
��
�����I��
#
��������
����������
��#
$
�D	�������"��	�����
���H��#����H
���%�H
����	������
�T
��	�U�����%�"���
���%��TU"!�����T
���T
��	�V	

��"���
���%��TTV"!������
$�
�
����
��#
$
��	��������
�
�
��
������������
������������
���$
��
�
#F
���
���
���
���
�
�
���
$
	
��
�������������
����
�
������������		��
����$
������
���	�
��
���
��
��������������%��
�����
����
����		��������
��
���
��	

�����&�
����
����
�
��
	�
��
�
��"�$��
�%�����
�
��� �	��&�
��
� ���
����&����������
���%��������
��	
��	��
���
����@�
�	��&�
��
�� ���

�����&������
$��
���������
��
$
	
��
�����		�	
����
�������
��	��
������
��
� ���

�����&������������
����
�
���
�
����
����������
����
�
������
�������
�C
���
����D��&����W
�
��@�
�
�
�
��������
�����
����������
���HHH��
	��%����
�
�����
���
����
�
��	���K������
���K�
��
���
�	���
��#
�
����	
���
��
���
�������&�����
�������
���������
���U
�
$
�����
�
��
���#	
�����	�����
����
��C
���
����D��&�����
��������		�#
��
����
�
��(�������
82



�����������	
������
��
��������	
��������������������������� �!��"�#$ %%�%��&''$�( ��"%�)*+,*+**,+-+./�0���123�4 %!�56��#$ %%�%���� 7� ���8%$�9�$:��"�("7'$����("%68$� ��"%�;����������$�< %���7����%(:�'$ %%��6�;����%�����("%68$� ��"%���7�6( $�� %!�=�;"8$!������>"���7 9������>"$$";�%��("%!���"% $���'��6�%� ��"%��%�"�!����"��%68����� ��;��!"�%"��("%���?8����"� %:�!�$ :��%�����'$ %%�%��'�"(�66/�0���6( $�� %!�$"( ��"%�">�����'�"'"6�!�!�<�$"'7�%���6�68(���� ��123�!"�%"�� !<�6�� � �%6�����6� ''$�( ��"%�8%$�66������7����%(:�'$ %%��6� ��@87?�� �@"8%�:�@"8%(�$�;��(���6���6'"%6�?$��>"������'��' � ��"%�">�����A�<"%6�����A"(9�@"7'$�B�C) ��";DE">>F6�����7����%(:�'$ %���G8���!�?:�����3 !� ��"%�CH7����%(:�#��' ��!%�66� %!�#8?$�(�=%>"�7 ��"%D�3��8$ ��"%6�C3H##=3D�*+I.�6� ����� �J��%�������"'�%�"%J�����'�"'"6�!�!�<�$"'7�%��( %%"��?�� (("77"! ��!�;����%�������">>F6�����7����%(:�'$ %%�%�� �� %��7�%�6/�K�"8$!�:"8�� <�� %:�G8����6���� �!�%�����6� !<�(�J�'$� 6��("%� (��123�<� ��F7 �$��"�123F4 %!/56�F#$ %%�%�L"%�/�"</89/�=�;"8$!�?���� ��>8$��>�:"8�;"8$!�%"��>:�123�">�����"8�("7��">�����!����7�% ��"%�">����6� ''$�( ��"%/�����������M�
�N�����O�P������Q�R������S��O��0����"6��'�"'���:��6� ������F6�"��:�'�"'���:�;��(��>��6�� ''� �6�"%���6�"��(�7 '6��%�IT.*/��=���6�6��� �������%!�">�U ���6"%�K������;��(����6�6�8'��"������ 6�/��0����B���% $�> (��">�����?8�$!�%��"%�?"�������U ���6"%�K������ %!�# � !�6��K�������$�< ��"%6��6�> (�!��%���!�?��(9� %!�:�$$";�6�"%��;���� �'"$:(��"7 ��(����:� %!���!�(8�<�!�?��(9�!�6��%� ?"<��������"8%!�>$""��;�%!";6�;���� �? %!�">�$�������:�$$";�?��(9�?�$";�����(�$$6� ����"8%!� %!�>��6��>$""��$�<�$J�;��(�� !!6� %��%����6��%��!�6��%��"������B���% $�> (��">�����?8�$!�%�/��0�����'��"">��6�(8���%�$:�("<���!��%� ����:�6$ ���("$"8��!��"">�%��7 ���� $/�����$6��%"��$�6��!J�����'�"'���:�� 6�6"7��< $8�� 6� �%"%F!�6��% ��!������ ��� 66��/��O��0���6�����6�6���;����%������";%�(�%���� 6�!�>�%�!��%�����$"( $�'$ %� ''�"B�7 ��$:�IT7�>�"7�����'��7 �:�6�"''�%�� �� /��=�6�7"6����(�%��86��� 6�?��%� 6� �@&A&K�">>�(�/���=�� ''� �6��"�� <��?��%��%�">>�(��86��! ��%��? (9��"�����I.-+V6J� %!��������6�6"7���<�!�%(��">�'��<�"86��B���% $� $��� ��"%6/��&!W (�%���"�����6�����6�U ���6"%�K������;��(���6� �������9%���6������;����' �9�%�� $"%��"%��6�!��;�����";6�">����� (�!�!;�$$�%�6�?�:"%!�����6�����"�����%"���� %!�� 6�/��A���(�$:�"''"6��������6�����"�����;�6���6� �' :� %!�!�6'$ :�( ��' �9� %!�?�:"%!����6��6�������� �$� �� �">�A $�"%�3" !/���
83



���������	
���
	�
�������������������������������������� !�����"���#$%����$&�'�����(�)��������(����*����++�*"����� !�����"���,���-������%.�/��0����+�����+����������������������������1������+���������1�+��"�����������������"+��2��)��"�����"���"���$.3(�2"��1�+������+�����������(��1�)�*�����"��������������"�����2���������)���"�����2�����������"�+�.�����4)��*��*��"������������)��+��"��������"++�((��"�����������)����������.��5��������������������1��������6������������(�1�"�����������"���"�+7+���������"���*��*����.��5�������������������1�����������(��"���+�((��"��0��+)���"��"�"���*��*����.��5����+���������������1��)������6������������(�1�"�0��+)��8�������"��"����*��*�����"�����2��)�"����������"+�.��'�����(���9����"�������(�$:.;(<����$=.$(<.���>�4)��������"��+)"�������+������)������+"���������)������"�+������2"71�"�����������"���������)��"���"����"���������)������������������)��?"�"�����,����������"�����"����)�����("��������"��"���������"�@"+��������)���"+0�����������("�+)�������+0.��A���)��B"�������,����������"����1��)�����������)���"���*��*�����2��)����+������"9����*"���������)����*�)"�������)�������6������2����2���������+��.��4���)����"�1�"��������������������1���������������*�������"����)�2������������)������������"���*�������"���"������"�+�.�C�����*��*���������������+���2�����(���2����2������)�������2)�+)�"���������+�"�����)"�����������1�"����������"+��"���$.3(�)��)������"�7�2"���"�����"9����+����.�>��D�
�E	F
�G��
��H��>���$I3=8:3&=�$;�B"�������,�����1�'"���26��6#�������6��)"��������������(��2��������������+������"�+)���+���"��*�"+��+��5**+����$J8$$8$I3=��>���KL8;::&8$:;&�$;�B"�������,������'"���26��6#�������6��)"��������������(�����+�� '$%�����2������� �J%�"������+��������"�������������7���"������������ "(���������+��*����%.�5**+����$38$$8;::&��>�>�';:8;:$;8:$;$�$;�B"�������,������'"���26��6#�������6��)"��������������(�����+�����"���������2������.�5**+����;;6M5N6;:$;�O��PQQ�R���S�����T�F
�O���4)���"**��+"����������������*�����������2����"�UM���������N�����U���������������(��)��V�+�(����;:;;�(������.��4)����"���(�����������)���(���������+����"�������2�W�XYZ�[\]�̂_̀ab�cd�e_fghijj_k�lhm[\g�\gb�]ah_gbab�cd�e_fghijj_k�nd]_g�Zo\Z�Zoa�e_̂ îZZaa�]o_fjb�ca�̂igbab�Z_�kapf]a�Zoa�\qqjih\Zi_g�\]�Zoa�\ka\�bib�g_Z�[\kk\gZ�\g_Zoak�rlsX1�"���tumvswxmyz{�YZ�[\]�\|kaab�Zo\Z�h_g]ibak\Zi_g�_p�Zoa�\qqjih\Zi_g�ca�bapakkab�Z_�Zoa�ga}Z�âaZig|~�]igha�Zoa�e_̂ îZZaa�o\b�caag�̂igbab�Z_�kapf]a�Zoa�\qqjih\Zi_g�_g�Zoa�|k_fgb]�Zo\Z�\qqk_̀\j�_p�Zoa�qk_q_]\j�[_fjb�ca�h_gZk\kd�Z_�w_h\j��j\g��_jihd�r���ig�Zo\Z�iZ�[_fjb�ja\b�Z_�\g�_̀ak�h_ghagZk\Zi_g�_p�]îij\k�f]a]�[iZo�ka]fjZ\gZ�\b̀ak]a�îq\hZ�_g�Zoa�ka]ibagZi\j�ho\k\hZak~�\̂ agiZd�\gb�q\k�ig|�ig�Zoa�j_h\j�\ka\t��
84



�����������	�
	�������
����
���
�
�������������
��������	��
��
		������	�����������


�

���	���	��
������
�	�	������
�������������	
������������������
���
� ������
�����������
����!����������������
��������
���	����������
��������
�
	����� ����������
�������������
������	���"�
����������
�
	����

���	
�����#��� ���$���%�������&����
�����������	��
��������	��
����������	���
���
������
�
	���	��������	������������
	
���
�
����

�	��
�
�����
	������$��
���
#��
�
��


�

���	����������	���
�'�(������������)*� �����
	
	�
+�,-����������./0�12313456�73869�:3;�6059�;3�5:�3<02=>3:>0:;25;,3:�3?�4,@,652�8404�20486;,:A�,:�;/0�6344�3?�43>,56�5:9�>3@@8:,;B�>3/04,3:C���D�E��	��
���
	
�����	�����
���)������
������
�����
���
���F	���	�����
�G���	���	��������
���	�
���
��	��#��
������H������	�
	�������	���������
	��
��
���I����������

�#�����
�����������
��	
	���
�	��)��	����������	��
�����
���
���F	���	�
������������������#��J�������� �	��
���	��	�
��K���#�����������	����E	��
������
�	�	�����
����� ��	����	��
����#������������� ������
���
��
�&�������������	����
�	��

������������	�����������	��
��
�����������	��*������������������
�� ���������������	����	����
	�
	�L����
��"����		���M���������	�������'LM"�(�	������
�
�"����		�����
��������
��������%�


�N�#�	 ����
�%K���
����	�
���
������
��
���%J����
�
�������	����������
	�����%�


�%J��
���������

�
�
�������
�
����������#��#�	 ����	�����
���
��������
	�����������
�
��

�	��������������
�����
�������� ���
�
���#

���
����	��
�
����

�
�&�	��������#
	��������$��
������		�������������	�
��� 
����� ������
���
�	���#��
��������
�������	��� ��������O���
����
��� 
�	��������#���	�����������	��
�	����
����#�	 ����	���%K�
���%J��
�
�
��������
	�
�	�
	�	���������������
�	������
����
���
�����
����
�������
����	
#��������
������	���
��I�
����	�
��%�
�
�	�����P�$������
��	�����	���
�	�� ���
	���
����	�
������
	���������������
����
�
������
���
�
�
����������
��	��	���	� �����	����
���
�Q
���	�	��
���#�����
���
�&���������	� ���������������
���������

���������������
��
���	�
�������$������
�������������	��
�� �	�
	�	��������
����
�� ����
�������
�	������
�	������	�����
�
�	������	���
��
������
���
#����	���������	������
����
�	���	�����
�����	��
�	
���#�����

����
����	��������
����	
������	���	���#
�
����	�
	���
��	
����
�������������	�
	������������
�
��$�����	����	�����	���"�
����������
���	
�����������	����R�$���
�����
	�����������
�
�������������	��������	�	���#��������� �	����	���
��#���
	��
���	����������#
	���	�������	���#
�&�
	���	��$��
�

���	�������	�������
	�����
���	���
�
��������������
��	�����������#���
��S��	���������	���
���	��

�
�
�����������
�����	����������
	����	��
�� ��� ����
	����������	��
������	���
�����
�	�
����
�
����� ������
�
��
����������
	����

�	��	���
�	����
	��������	����	��������

���
���
��������	��
	��
����������
����
85



��������	
�����
����������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������
������������������
����������
������ ���!������!������������������������������
��
��������������������������������������������
����������������������
��
�����������������������������
�����������������������������������������"�
����������
��������
���������������������������

������������������������������
���������������������������!���������������������
��
�����	
#� ���
��
���������������������������������������������!�����$%�������������
���������������������������
��������
��������������������������������
�����������������������
���������
����������������������������������������
������ ���
����������������������
����������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������"����������	
&�'��������������������
��
����������������������������(������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)����
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(����������������������������

���������������������������������������������������������������������	
*+�,�����������������������������'(-�������������������������������%..����������������������
�����������/������/��������������'��������/�������0�������������������������������'(-���������/������/1������0�������/����������(���������������������������������������������������
��
������������
������������������������
�������
�������,��������
���������������
������������'(-������������������������������������

������������������������������������
���������2���!������������������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������34�567879:;�6<=56>�?5;;5@A�59B�	
**� �������������������������������
��
������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������0�
������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������
������C�����
�����	
*D� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������
��
������������������$%������������������������������E�F� G*�H<:69798�:9I�959J6<A7I<9>7:;�79A>7>K>759A�L�2���M�����������������������������N������������O�
����E��P�G*Q:R������������������������
86



���������	
��
���������
����
����������	
����
������

�������	��������������
���
����������� �	!��	 �
�	�
������ �	!���
"	�#�����
������$���� �	!��
��
�����%�	 	�	����
��
������&���� �	!����
�	��������	#	��
�	�
���!�	�������	��!����!�	����	���
�!���
��������'��(
��!����
�)*�+���
����!������	���

� �����
�"� ��,-�-./��0����!��!�	�#����	���� 
	��1������
���
����� ��
�!�
�	�
 �����#
�	

�	�����
��������
�������
�"�#�	"
�!������!�	���
����
���
#�
�
������"	�#�
� 
�
�!��
 �
��
�"�
""	!�	2�� ��
2	����	�!��"	�#��"�!
�	��
������
���
/��3�	
��	����
2���
"�
���
�
 �	
��"���2������!��	�#
�
�"�#�	�#
��������
	��1�	�!��"	�#� ������"�
��	
��
�"�2��	!��
����
��	!/��4����!��
	"��	�#�������	
��	��
!�
�
�	
	�#������
�����
�	2���
�
�������������������	!��!���"��!!����	�������������"�����
���
��	�#�
���	!
�	��1���	
�	
�����2
����������/��4�	�
�������%	
�	�#��
��	
����5��
	"���	
�1�������	
�
!��������
��	"�������	���"��
���������
	��1�������	
����

�
�
!���������������
�� ��
���������#
�	

�	�����	!������"��
���	��������
 �2��!
��#��	�
/���6��	
�	����	
�!����%����
��
""	�	��
��	��
!�
���������������
�"��
��
���!��
	"���"/�7���2
������	!	�
�
�"�8�	"
�!��)*�)�3���9
�	��
����
��	�#����	!��:�
��������9��:��!���	��
�����
�
��
����������2�����������
���	/�/�;
����<
�(�!
����
���

�����
�
��	�#���	�������"�!	
	����
�	�#/�.�!�	���=>�?�����������
��	�#�
�"�,�����
�������!�

��-!��@AAB�
�
����C�	��
���
��D������	���
�	�#�
���"�����	�
�	�����"���������
��	�#�-!�
1���#
�"�	
���� ���
"��������"�2�����������
�1�
�"�����"�����	�
�	���
�
��� ���
"��	��
!!��"
�!���	���������
������

��
���	
��!��
	"��
�	��
�	�"	!
���������	
�/E�)*�F�6������
����9
�	��
����
��	�#����	!�1��
�
#�
���GG��������9��:���C�	��
���
��"�2��������������

�
���
��
!!��"��	���
����5��5"
���"�2�����������
��
���
����2�"��	������"��
�/��4����!��
	"��	�#�"�2�����������
�����	!	�
1�
��������	!����	!�����
��
������	
��������������
�"�"�2���������	
���!
����
�����	!��H@?�5�H��
�
�	������	�����!!��
�	��/��3�	
�
��
�!�	���	
����


�

�
���	!
�	��
�
#
	�
�/��3
�	�#����
��	������I�JKLMLNOPN�QLK�RST�NUVWXYXNXLZ�LQ�W[TPPXZ\N�OZW�RSLNT�[SX]S�XZYLPYT�RST�]KTORXLZ�LQ�POK\T�SLUNTN�XZ�̂UPRXMPT�L]]UMORXLZ�_LYTK�̀�L]]UMXTKNa�[XPP�VT�O]]TMROVPT�MKLYXWXZ\�RSORb�Oa���������cU]S�MKLMLNOPN�WL�ZLR�PTOW�RL�RST�UZO]]TMROVPT�PLNN�LQ�\LLW�dUOPXRe�QÔ XPe�SLUNXZ\f�ROgXZ\�XZRL�O]]LUZR�SLUNXZ\�ZTTWN�XWTZRXQXTW�XZ�RST�]UKKTZR�cRKORT\X]�hLUNXZ\�iOKgTR�jNNTNN̂ TZRk�)*�l�3���
	����

� ����	�����	!���
�������
�����
�
�
�"����������

���	�������	��
!�����#��"�C�
�	����
�	������
	�#/�Va���������mSTKT�[XPP�VT�ZL�UZO]]TMROVPT�X̂MO]R�LZ�RST�KTNXWTZRXOP�Ô TZXRe�LQ�ZTX\SVLUKXZ\�MKLMTKRXTNf�TNMT]XOPPe�[XRS�KTNMT]R�RL�MKXYO]ef�ZLXNT�OZW�LRSTK�WXNRUKVOZ]Tk��)*�n�3�	
�	
�
�����
��
�����!��
	"��
�	��/��3�����
�����������	
�
����"��������
!��
	����	�������
��
!��"���
	"���	
����������/��3�����
�����
	"���	
���������	�
�"	��!��������
	���	��H
��	
���.�����/��3�����!
�	����������
	���	
��
�#������
	"���	
��	���
����/�
87



��������	
���
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������! ������������ �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"���#�����������������������������������������������������������������������$%&'(���������)�����������������������������������������������
������������������������������� � �����* �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+&����	
�,��������������������������������������)���������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)-� ������ ����������������������� ������������������������������� ����#����������+&���������������������������������������%��������.������������������������������������������� ��������/������������������������������������� �������� ������������0�����	
12�
������������������������������������������������������������ �������������������������������������������������������� ������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������3������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������	
1��#��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������ ���������������������������������� ������������ ��������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������� ��������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ����������� ���������� ���������������������� ����	
11�4��������������������������������#������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���������������������� ����������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������5��������� �������	
16�!��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�����������������)���������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������������������� �����0�������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������� ������� ��������������� ��������������������������* ��)��������������78���������9:;�<=><>?@A�B>CAD�E>F�@DG;=?;AH�@II;7F�F:;�7:@=@7F;=�>I�F:;�JCKADKEL�>=�F:;�?C==>CEDKEL�@=;@M�I>=�;N@O<A;�F:=>CL:�@E�CE@77;<F@JA;�KE7=;@?;�KE�>EP?F=;;F�<@=QKELR�
88



���������	
�	��
����������
��������������������������������
�������������������������������������
���������������
��������
��
�
��������������������������������������������������������
�����
� ���������������������
����
��������������������!����������
���
� ��������������
���������������������������������������������� �����������������������������"���������������������������#����
�����������$�����������������%�������������
���������
����
�������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������&������������������
��������������� ��������������
��
���������������������������������������'
�������������������������
�����������
������� �����������������
���
����������������������������
����������������������
��������	
�(��
�����������������������������������������������������������
���#����������������
�������������)�����������������������
��
������������� �������
����
���������������������� �����
��������������������������
���#����������������������
������������
��
�
��������������������������������
������������������ ���������������
���
������������
������������	
�*��
������������������� �������������������
����������������������������������������
��������������
����������������
������������
����������'�����������
����������������+
��� ��������
������������������������������������������������������
�������������
��
�������������������������
�����
� ����������� ����������������
���������������� ������,-���������./0�1231340,�56702689�,045:6�064;204�7/87�;6574�<599�/8=0�8>>044�73�4;??5>5067�687;289�95:/7@�=0675987536@�125=8>A@�3;7933B�86,�56,332�8C0657A�418>0D�	
�E��
��������������������� ��������
���$��������������
�����������������������������������������
������������������������������������
������������������
���������������� ��������������������������
��� ���������������������������� ����������������������������
����
��
����������������������������#������������������
��
���������
�����������'��������� ��������������������������
��������
������������
����F�������
����������������������������F�����������������G�H�I�����
�����������������JK�J�I����
�����#������
������������%���������������������
����������L�����	
�M�'������
������������������
�������������������������������������������
� ������������ ����
��
��
���������������������
���������������������
������������ ���������#��������������������
������������������
���
���������������
������������������������
��N������������������
������������������������������
�������������
�����
��
��
������
������������
�����������������
���
� �������������������������
������������������������� ������
�������������������
����� ������������
��N�������������������
��������������������������
����������
����� ���������������L��������������
����F��������������JO�����JJ����������
�����
��
�����
� �������������������������������
��������
��������
���� ��������������������������������������������������� �����������������������������������������������
���������������
��
���������������������������
���PQ��������������
89



��������	
����
�	���������	�������	�������������	
������	���
�����������������������������������
�	�����������	����������������������
������

����	������	�������������� �	� ������	�
����
����	
�������	���  �	�������	���	
�������	�����������!"���������#$!�%&'%'()*�+'!(�,'-�*!)+�-'�.,)%%&'%&.)-!�(-)/0.,1�'2�&''3(4���56�7������������������ ������	�����������������
��� ���	�������8���9��������������� ��
����	
����
�	����������
�
��������	��	�������� ����
����	�����2"������:+!;<)-!�(<.-)=*>�(/&!!,!+�(%)/!�.(�%&'?.+!+�2'&�-$!�(-'&)1!�'2�&!2<(!@�&!/>/*.,1�=.,(�),+�/>/*!(4����5A�B	��	���	�����������������������	������
�
�
����������
�������������	
��8�������������������������	������������
���������������	���C�����	��������C����������	
���	������	
����	�
������
�	��8��1"���������D<-+''&�)3!,.->�(%)/!�.(�%&'?.+!+�E$!&!�%'((.=*!4����5��B����
����������������	������
�
������������
�������	���������
���������	���������������
���F���	���� �	��8��������$"���������#$!&!�.(�)+!;<)-!�)//!((�2&'3�-$!�&!(.+!,-.)*�<,.-�-'�='-$�-$!�2&',-�),+�&!)&�'2�-$!�=<.*+.,14���55�B��������������
�
���������������������8��������
��	���	
���
����������	������������	��
���
��������������."����������#$!�%&'%'()*�E'<*+�,'-�*!)+�-'�),�'?!&G/',/!,-&)-.',�'2�(.3.*)&�<(!(�&!(<*-.,1�.,�-$!�*'((�'2�('/.)*�),+�/'33<,.->�/'$!(.',4�),+���5��7��	���	�����	������ ����	��������������
��������
�����	��
�HIJK�9�������
����	��������������������	��	������	��
��� �����������	������������8��
������������H������9��	������������	�����	���������
9���
���	������ �
����������F����	��L���
�HIJK���	�H������	���������������������	�����
����	��

����	����������8����	�������	��8���	�����
��M	
��������	������������	9���������F������	����	������8��	�HIJ���
���������	����
������������
�� �
� ��8�����
�	�������������� ������8��
������������8�	
������������������������� ��	��	�����
�	�����������������������������
�	��������
�������
�����	�����N��	��	������	��
��� ������������O"����������#$!�(.-!�.(�E.-$.,�!)(>�&!)/$�'2�%<=*./�-&),(%'&-�),+�/'33<,.->�2)/.*.-.!(P���5Q�������������RS �
�� �����T�� ��8�������	��B�������
�
�	�
��	��������������	���U����������	������������C�����������	�H���������������	
� �	8���  �	��8�
�������������������	�����������
�
���
������
���������	������� �	�������	��������8������
�� ���������������F��	���
���VC ��8��������	�8�����
������
���������������� ������8��
������������������
90



���������	
�	��
��
���
�����������
��	�
��	���������������
����������������	����������
��	�
��	�������������������	
������������
������
������
�
 ������������!	
�����
�!��
�����	
�	�������"���	 ���������������������������#
����
��$�
����%�$������$


%

	��&'(���������
������
��	�
����%�	��������
����������������!������!
����
����"���	 �����������!������������
���
�����������"�

���)!
������������

�
��������������
������������������!

������"
�
���
��������������
�	
�
�������	
�	�����!��������*
��%�*
��������!�������	
�	�
���
���
��
��������+�����%��+��
�
����
�!
��������,�#$$-�	


%

	��&'(�
������
��	�
��	��������.�	�
���� 	�
�
�������%��������%��
��������
�)!�
�����
����"���	 �����

��"��!
����
��

���"��
��
�
��!������%����

�������!
��
���

���� 	
�������������
����


���
�
��������
�������!���%������!

�!����%�*!������"�
�� ����������	
�	������+��
�
������%����� 
�����%� 
��
�
�������������
���
���	�
*���������	
�	��
��������
���
���������
������
���
��������
����
��	�
����%�	��������������
�%

������/�#
����
��$�
����%�$����������!

%�����"���	 �������*��	��������������!��
��
*������
��������
��

��	�
����������������
�������������������������������������������
��
����

��	�
����������������� ��������*��
��!��
��
*������
���������0�1��
��$�
��$���������
�)!�
�����
�����

�
���!���
��%��
� ���%�����
��������
����	

���%�	
�*�� ���%
�
��
�	
�"�����������*����!%������
��	����*�����
�
���
�
��"��



�%� ����������*��
�)!�
������������!��
����������2! *
�
���%��
��������*3��������
��*����
����"������������
�����
���������"���	 ��������������
"��
� 
��
�
�������������+�����%���%��
�������������%�"�����
��������������������*��������������
���������	

���%���
������

�
��4�	
�����
���������5���"�

��
��	���������!* �����������
 �������
������
��
��������������"���	 �����������

������������!���������
��67���������������
���������"�
���������!��������
�)!�
��	�
����%�
		
�"
����������! *�
�������!	
������
��
*�"������8�����
���
���
"���������
����"�
����������"�
������!���
�	�
����%���%���
�������2����
�����
��
����

������"�
�	

���%���8����������*3��������
��*����
����"����
� �2! *
�
���%��
������!
�������
������� 
������ �
�

�����
��������9������
����"�
�	

���%�	�
 ����
��������

���!��������������
����������	�
����%������ ���:�
�	
�����
������
��
����
����"��������
���%������+��
�
��
		�


�����������	
�	�
���
�������
�%��
������ ���
��	
�	����������������������+��
�
��*
�����
�����
����%��������
��*����
��
��������
�!%�������!* ����������
�"������

���%����������������������+��
�
��
		�


����������������*���%�
��
�������2������
��������;�2����
���
��

�����*��������"�

��
��	���������"�
������ 	
�������
����������!�%������
����
� �������"���	 ������#��	

���!�

�*
��%
�!�����������������
����
��"����������	
�����������������!%%���������
���
�������������!���*�������������
!���
��� 	
�������
��������%�"���������
���"
�����������������������
���
���<�=>?@ABCD�BEEFGE�?EBHGI�JKG@G�BE�?�@G?L�MNCMG@C�NOG@�JKG�E?PGJQ�NP�NF@�QNFCD�MKBLH@GCR�SKG@G�?@G�MF@@GCJLQ�TU�QNFCD�MKBLH@GC�NP�VFCBN@�EMKNNL�?DGE�LBOBCD�BC�JKG�MLNEG�?@G?�NP�JKG�W@NWNEGH�XFBLHBCDR�YF@�P?ZBLBGE�NC�[?@@BENC�\J@GGJ�?@G�MNCMG@CGH�NOG@�JKG�L?@DG�CFZXG@E�NP�HBPPG@GCJ�NMMFW?CJE�MNZBCD�?CH�DNBCD�@GDFL?@LQ=R�
91



����������	
���
�����������������������������������
��
�����������������
�����
�������������
������
������������
	����������������
��
������
�����������
�����
������	
��
�
������
�����������������
�������
�
������������������
����������	���
��
�����

�	��	
��������
��
����������������	��������������
�������
����������������
���	���������
������
����������
����������������������������
���������
������������
��
�������������	
��
����
������	������
��������
��
		��������� �������������
�	
���
��
��������
		�������
������
����������!� ��������	
���
�����
�������������
��
������������	������	
���
���
�����������
������������"��������������
�����
����
��	�������������
�
��
������
��������������������
�	���
�����������#$��
����
�������
���������������������
�����
���	�����������������
������������������
�����
����������
����
���������������
������������������������
��������������������
��������������������
		�����������������
�������������	
���
�����
���
�������������������������
����
��	�������
�������
�������	
�
�
�������	�����%�����������������
���&������
�������������������������
������
�	
���	�����������������������
��������������
��
����
���������'�
	����������
����
��
����
������������
�������	��������(����	���������������	��������������)�	�����
��

�����������	��
�������	����
��
�����������
���������������������
������
��������������������
�����"�����������������������
��	����
�������������������
������
���*�����������+�"�����
�
��
�
����
������
���������������
�������������)���������	�����������
����	�����������	��������
�������	�����������
�
�����������	����
���
��
��,-��
����������������������
	���
��	�
����
��������������������"���	
������
��
��������
�������������
��
������
������
����������	
������
���
������
����
��
�������
��������
������
��
�����������������		��������������.� 
��	��/#-���0������
����
��������
�
������
��������
����
���
���������������
���	��������		�����
�����
���
������������
�������
��
���������
�����
�
������
��
����
��������
������������0����������
���		�������������
���	����
���
�������
���������������"�����������
����
�����
�������������
���	
�
���

�����	������
������������	����
����������	�������������������
��
�	
���
�������������������
����
���
��
����
��
���

����	���������+��1234567823�+�9�"�����
�
��
�
����
�������������	������		
�
��������
����
	�����
�����
��������������
��	����
����	
���
���
��
����������������
����
����������������������������
	���
���
��������
�����������"�����
�
��
�������������
��������	
����
���
��
�����


�����
��
�
���		
��

���
���
���������
		���������
���
��
������������������	��
������������
	���������������������
�
��
�����
����������������
���������
���	������	
��������
��
�������������������������
��
������������������	�������	
�����
��
���������������
�����
�������������
������
����������������
�����������������
92



��������	
���
�����
������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������������������������!������"�����������������������������������������������������!!�������������#��
������������$������� ��������������������������������!��������%�� ������������&��!����������&"����� ������ ��������������������#��
���'����"�'���������(����(�������������!�������������&�� ��������������������������������������"#��)�"������������!����������!����"�����&��!��� ���������� �������������� ��������������&�������� �#��
�����(�������������&!�������������������������������������������������&����������������!����"�����&���������������������������*����������������#��
����������������������������������������������!������������������&������ ������ �����������������������(���� ����������������������������������������������������������������"���(������(�����������������������������+,-�����#���.�/0��110�234������5�����!!���������6������ �6��!�������&��78)9
:;���&*�����������<��������;��������=�!������������������� �����������>�$��?@ABCDEFGH�IDJK�LBBM@NHO�PCEFQ��R��
�����(����!��������&"����!������������&��������������������������������������������������������������������������(��������S#TU#VV�������������&"������(�������!�������������&"���������!�����������������&�������������������(������&"�������������������������������������>��VVUWT$WUU$)�VVUWT$WUT�VVUWT$WUX$'�VVUWT$WUY$Z�VVUWT$WUS$)�VVUWT$WU[$)�VVUWT$WU\$)�VVUWT$WU]$)�VVUWT$WTU$)�;��� ������)������<����!����$�<����!&���VUVV�
���������<����!����$�<����!&���VUVV�)�����������̂��!�������S#TU#VV�6������ �<����!����$�<����!&���VUVV�=������������VS#TT#VV�'�7�+�!���=�!�����$�_����������������������������$�����(��(�����/03
����
��������������������(����!����������������������"��������������������������� �������(���&"�����6������ �)�������"#���
93



�����������	
��
�������������������������������������������������������� !�����"���#�������$��"�#������#��������"�%%&'()'&*)+!�'&,)+!�'(&)+�"����������"�����#���#����-������ ��������#.�/�����"�����������0���������������"�1�����������������1��������2���""����"������������������$�+������� .��345678��9����#��������������������"�#��������-������"������������.��
����
���:�;��<
�
���/�������"�����"����������"������� ������0�#�"��������"����#�1�������������������������-�"�"��"�"��1����������%%&'()'&=)>.�345678��9����#��������������������"�#��������-������"������������.���?����@��
A��B� ����"�������������� ��##���������2�����������������"���C����#���#�������D���#��$�E�$�������"�-� ���"����C������������������$����"���.�����"��"���F���������������$�G���������������� �"����1��F"�����������#����.���B� ����"������1�����������H����I�$�"��0�������-�J����#�J�������"�� ����������$�J����#�J�������"���K�JJH���I�$L�����.��.�F���B� /��"�#�0����-����-� ���C����������0�����#�������D���#��$�E�$�������".�����"���������� ����D���#��$�>�������#�����-�������&(%%M�,*N'ON��������������#0�����"������1����������#.���B� /��������"�#�#�0����-�����"�"������#�1����������I������#�P-��$��� ��������$�+�����������D+P�"���.�>�-�����>���� �>������!��������"���1��������"���������������#�����G����������Q�������E�$�������!���0����������"������������$�-���"�������"�#���"R��"���""����-�"�"�������"��������#�����������������������"����#������"����$������������������1�����������������������������������F����������0��������������#�����������"���.�/��������������"��#0�"�#��������"��1��������>���� �>�������P-��$��� ��������$���������������1�������������#�"��""��������0�������������-�����S�H������P-��$��� ��������$�G������!�E�"��������J���!�>�-�����>���� �>������!�>�-�����T����U�E�"����VW!�>��������+0�!���������!�>�-�����!�>+(&�%T+�
94



���� ��������	���
���
������
�
�������������
������������������
�
�������
������
�
�
����
������
�
�
������
������	���
��
�
�
�
�
	�
���
��	
�
�����������
���
������
������
������
�
��������	��
��
����
����
�
��
�
�
��������
���������	��
� !"#$!%�
�
�&�'�
������������
����������
�������
����
�����
�
��
��
����
����&�(�� ��'�
��������������	��
����
�����
��)�����*����*�������+,����
�
�-������-�������)�����*����+.(,/+.0(����
��
��
�����	��
�	�
�������
������
�
��
�����������������
����
���
���
��
��	�
��
������
����
�
��
��	
�
����������

�����
��
����	������������
�
���������
�1��22222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�������

95



��������	
 	����
����������	�����
�����������	�����
���

����	��	�������
�����
�
��	���������������

����
�����

��������������

������������	����
�����
��	������
�������	��	�

���������	��
���������
���

�����
�������������	�

��
����	������������	�

���
�����������
�����
�������������	�������


����
������	�	��	����		��

	��������
�������	��	
�������������
���	��

��������	����������	�
�	���

������	�����
��������
��	�������
���
������

����	������
�������
��
���������	������	��

����
�������������	���
����
��	�����������	�

��	�����������	������
�����
���	����


�������	�	��
 ������	�
������	���
 ������	��

����
 
�	�
� �����
���������� !"�!#�$%

����#
�

�&'(�)�*��'++'&�,-!%��..'!-
�/'++��-�*��'++'&�,-!%��#$ 

(�*��--�0�*���12�3�

4115�236�3441

-7�'+
�'&.#8����� !"�!#�
$%�+�&&'&��
 ��'&� �+�&&'&��
 ��'&��+�&&'&��
 ��'&��+�&&'&��
 ��'&� �-9�

:;<� �0�'&�'!�(-��'(-��#!�('#&��+�& �'(-��#!�('#&��+�&�'(-��#!�('#&��+�&�'(-��#!�('#&��+�& �#&9- 0'#&�(#���� �#&9- 0'#&�(#�����#&9- 0'#&�(#�����#&9- 0'#&�(#���� )=��� ��'0-��(>���  #� )=��� ��'0-��(>���  #�)=��� ��'0-��(>���  #�)=��� ��'0-��(>���  #�� ���'& '&'&'&
� ���� ���$ $$$    & &&&- ---0 0000 000> >>>

��12�1�� ��12�1����12�1����12�1�� �-�(�=4== ==451 ==451==451==451� ���5 5554 4444 444� ���
� ���

?@ABC�DEDFGH
DFGI

FGI
DHHI JGIGHI HI

D�E�DFGH?KLM�BNOPLKNQ�RSPQ
TMUVMWOXKYLKNQ

VPLM

96



��������	
 	����
����������	�����
�����������	�����
���

����	��	�������
�����
�
��	���������������

����
�����

��������������

������������	����
�����
��	������
�������	��	�

���������	��
���������
���

�����
�������������	�

��
����	������������	�

���
�����������
�����
�������������	�������


����
������	�	��	����		��

	��������
�������	��	
�������������
���	��

��������	����������	�
�	���

������	�����
��������
��	�������
���
������

����	������
�������
��
���������	������	��

����
�������������	���
����
��	�����������	�

��	�����������	������
�����
���	����


�������	�	��
 ������	�
������	���
 ������	��

����
 
�	�
� �����
���������� !"�!#�$%

����#
�

�&'(�)�*��'++'&�,-!%��..'!-
�/'++��-�*��'++'&�,-!%��#$ 

(�*��--�0�*���12�3�

4115�236�3441

-7�'+
�'&.#8����� !"�!#�
$%�+�&&'&��
 ��'&� �+�&&'&��
 ��'&��+�&&'&��
 ��'&��+�&&'&��
 ��'&� �-9�

:;<� �0�'&�'!�(-�� #�#0-���'(-���=#$( � #�#0-���'(-���=#$(� #�#0-���'(-���=#$(� #�#0-���'(-���=#$( �#&9- 0'#&�(#���� �#&9- 0'#&�(#�����#&9- 0'#&�(#�����#&9- 0'#&�(#���� )>��� ��'0-��(?���  #� )>��� ��'0-��(?���  #�)>��� ��'0-��(?���  #�)>��� ��'0-��(?���  #�� ���'& '&'&'&
� ���� ���$ $$$    & &&&- ---0 0000 000? ???

��12�1�� ��12�1����12�1����12�1�� �-�(�>4>> >>451 >>451>>451>>451� ���5 5554 4441 111
@ABCD�EFGHH

GHI
JI

EKI EGI LI HI
E�F�GHHMNOPOQRS�@TUR�CVWOXU

YRZ[RQ\NTPUTO]
[VUR

97



��������	
��
�	� ����
 ��
��
�	��������
� ���������������������
��

��������
�	������� �������������������� �
����
�����������
�� ����������������
������


�
����������������

���������	��
�� ����������������

��� �����������
��
�	 ��
��
�	��
���������
�
	�

���������������������� ������
����������� �������
��������������� 
���
��
���������

��������

	��

��������	
��
�	� ����

���� ����

	��

���� ����

	��
���� ����

	��

�������������������� �
���
���

�����	
�	�
���������	��
�� ����������������

��� �����������
��
�	

��  ����
	����
������
��

����������!�"����
�	� #�
�$���$�%  ����
	�
�

��

�����
���������������������� �
���
���

�����	
�	�

���������	��
�� ����������������

��� �����������
��
�	
��  ����
	����
�����

��
�%  ����
	�������
�	

�
��
�$���$���



&���	��
����

������� ��

��
�������
�	� ��
�$���$
�������������������� �
���
���

�����	
�	�

�������������������� �
���
���

�����	
�	�

'()*+,-./0 /.,1�2+34,5-�,1�/.6�1(
76�'()*+,-./�(8�)2-�3

+'.,/6'/9+37�352�+6)+
(29'/,(5�,5�35*�8(+:

�,1�
8(+;,2265�957611�)6+:

,11,(5�,1�(;/3,562�,5�4
+,/,5-<�)2-�3+'.,/6'/9

+37�,1�3�/+32,5-�53:6�
(8�

)735�261,-5�-(�7,:,/62
<�2(�5(/�1'376�8+(:�/.

,1�2+34,5-�35*�2,1'+6
)35',61�(5�1,/6�1.(972

�;6�
;+(9-./�/(�/.6�3//65

/,(5�(8�)2-�3+'.,/6'/
9+37<�4(+=�352�:3/6+

,371�:91/�'(:)7*�4,/.
�/.6�

'9++65/�;9,72,5-�+6-9
73/,(51�352�'(261�(8�

)+3'/,'6�352�;6�+632�,
5�'(5>95'/,(5�4,/.�

;9,72,5-�1)6',8,'3/,(5
1�352�(/.6+�19;�'(5/+

3'/(+1�,58(+:3/,(5<�,
8�,5�2(9;/�31=

2+34,5-�/,/760 )+(>6'/�261'+,)/,(50 )+(>6'/�322+6110 23/60� 1'3760�???<@ABCDEFG<FH<IJ
2?B�5H0�

9KLM�N�O�=LPPLKBQRFJ�(SSLFR
�TLPPDBR�O�=LPPLKBQRFJ�'HIE

M�O�7RRAU�O�71VW�X82
YVVZ�WX[�XYYV

R\DLP0CLKSH]@ABCDEFG<FH<
IJ +R̂<

_à� V�0�VYY1R@M�bYbb

c�d�ceefghihjkl��mnkopqrhs�t�
ufnpssrsv

c�d�ceefghihjkl�mnkopqrhs�w�u
fnpssrsv

c�d�ceefghihjkl�mnkopqrhs�x�u
fnpssrsv

c�d�ceefghihjkl�mnkopqrhs�y�u
fnpssrsv zxt{m�cdcee

ce|
}|

~| �|�| e|
�koykj�griqrhs

ypqk

98



����������� 	
������	 ����������� 	
������	

�������� ���
����



�������	
����
�������	
�����������	
����

�������	
���� ������������ �������������
���� ��
 �������!������������



����������� 	
������	

�������� ���
����



������������
�������������
���� ��
 ������

�!������������



����������� 	
������	

"#$%&'()*+ *)',�-&./'0(�',�*)1�,#
21�"#$%&'()*�#3�$-(�.&

")'*1"*4&.2�.0-�&1$&#
-4"*'#0�'0�.0%�3#&5�'

,�
3#&6'--10�4021,,�$1&5

',,'#0�',�#6*.'01-�'0�/
&'*'0(7�$-(�.&")'*1"*4

&.2�',�.�*&.-'0(�0.51�
#3�$2.0�-1,'(0�(#�2'5

'*1-7�-#�0#*�,".21�3&#
5�*)',�-&./'0(�.0%�-

',"&1$.0"'1,�#0�,'*1�
,)#42-�61�6&#4()*�*#

�*)1�.**10*'#0�#3�$-(
�.&")'*1"*4&.27�/#&8�

.0-�5.*1&'.2,�54,*�
"#5$2%�/'*)�*)1�"4&&

10*�64'2-'0(�&1(42.*'
#0,�.0-�"#-1,�#3�$&.

"*'"1�.0-�61�&1.-�'0�
"#0940"*'#0�/'*)�64'

2-'0(�,$1"'3'".*'#0,�.
0-�#*)1&�,46�"#0*&."

*#&,�'03#&5.*'#07�'3�'0
�

-#46*�.,8 -&./'0(�*'*21+ $&#91"*�-1,"&'$*'#0+ $&#91"*�.--&1,,+ -.*1+� ,".21+�
:::7;<=>?@AB7AC7DE -:=�0C+�

4FGH�I�J�8GKKGF=LMAE�#NNGAM
�OGKK?=M�J�8GKKGF=LMAE�"CD@

H�J�2MM<P�J�2,QR�S3-
TQQU�RSV�STTQ

MW?GK+>GFNCX;<=>?@AB7AC7
DE &MY7

X.Q�Q�+�QTT,M;H�ZTZZ[\]\̂_̀abcdbef
ĝd\

h�i�hjjjjklmb_dbfn�[eeo�pqgf�
rpqgffbfn

h�i�hjjjjkpaece_\s�[eeo�pqg
f�rpqgffbfn

t̂�ub\v�[\ga�̂eaw\a_
�rpqgffbfn

xyz{l�hihjj
hjw

|w
}w ~w�w jw

99



���������� �	
��
����������
������	� ��
��
�������� ����
�������� ����
������� ����� ����

��������� ��
��
���������������
����� ��� ���� ���

�������
!"#$%#&'�(#&)*(�*+!&#&

'�
%*�,!�-)-+%!)�%*�.*/0� &!(�0-#&�!&%/-&1!� 2�.*/0�#&&!/�$%!+$�.*/� 3!4!3�)#..!/!&1!5

��������6� ��
7�
��������
8� ��9� ��

:/!-;�*<%�&!(�!"%!/&-
3�

)**/
="#$%#&'�!"%!/&-3� !&%/-&1!�%*�,!�/!0*4!

)�
-&)�*+!&#&'�%*�,!� -)-+%!)�%*�.*/0�&!(� (#&)*(>*/0�&!(�0-#&� !&%/-&1!�?�.*/0�#&%!/&-

3�
$%!+$�.*/�-11!$$

����� @��������� @����
	��� @���� 	��� @���� 	��� @����

ABC$D0
ABA$D0 ABA$D0������� ������� ABA$D0

:/!-;�*<%�&!(�!"%!/&-
3�

)**/E���F��9 ������� ��G�� � ��������������7�

����������� ����
��������H*(&�%*� '/*<&)�.3**/

��������� ����
��������I� �8����� ��
���
����������������J ��
��
��������
����������

�������
������� ���������� ���
����������������7� ��
���
�������� �J

��
��������
K+%*�L!1*&)� >3**/

������� ABA$D0������� ABA$D0
ABA$D0 ABM$D0

ABA$D0��������� ABA$D0�������
�F�����N���� ������9��

����������� �6
���
�������� �������
���������	� ��
	��
�������� �

��������6� ��
	��
�������� �������
OPQQ00�R!-)/**0

OPQQ00�R!-)/**0

AQQQ00�R!-)/**0OPQQ00�R!-)/**0

AQQQ00�R!-)/**0

/**.3#'R%
/**.3#'R%

/**.3#'R%

H*(&�%*�.#/$%� .3**/

�������

N��S�I��� ��

/**.3#'R%

T�

OUQQ00�R#'R�V3-$$� ,-3<$%/-)!
OWQQ00�R#'R�(-33

OPQQ00�R!-)/**0 >*/0�&!(�'-,3!�!&)�

ABA$D0ABA
$D0

ABA$D0

E���F��9������� �� G�� �X����������X��
YZ[\]\̂_�_̀�a\� \̂bc̀[\d�Ẑd�̂̀_� e[\d�f̀g�hZai_Zac\� [jZb\k

lmnopqrstu tsqv�wpxyqzr�qv�ts{�vm
|{�lmnopqrst�m}�nwr�xp

lsqt{lt~px|�xzw�p{npm
w~ltqmz�qz�xzo�}mp��q

v�
}mp�qww{z�~z|{vv�n{p�

qvvqmz�qv�m�txqz{w�qz�y
pqtqzr��nwr�xplsqt{lt~

px|�qv�x�tpxwqzr�zx�{�
m}�n|xz�w{vqrz�rm�|q�

qt{w��wm�zmt�vlx|{�}pm
��tsqv�wpxyqzr�xzo�w

qvlp{nxzlq{v�mz�vqt{�
vsm~|w��{��pm~rst�tm

�ts{�xtt{ztqmz�m}�nwr
�xplsqt{lt~px|��ymp��

xzw��xt{pqx|v��~vt�
lm�n|o�yqts�ts{�l~pp

{zt��~q|wqzr�p{r~|xtq
mzv�xzw�lmw{v�m}�npx

ltql{�xzw��{�p{xw�qz�
lmz�~zltqmz�yqts��~q

|wqzr�vn{lq}qlxtqmzv�x
zw�mts{p�v~��lmztpxl

tmpv�qz}mp�xtqmz��q}�qz
�

wm~�t�xv� wpxyqzr�tqt|{u npm�{lt�w{vlpqntqmzu npm�{lt�xwwp{vvu wxt{u� vlx|{u�
������������������ w���z�u�

~��������������������m�����
�����������������������l���

����|�������|v����}w
������� �����

�¡���u�����¢������������
��n��������w������ n��������w������n��������w������n��������w������ p�£�

¢x����u���n��������}�����n���� n��������}�����n����n��������}�����n����n��������}�����n���� l��£����������s�m l��£����������s�ml��£����������s�ml��£����������s�m �¤�n��������v�¥������� �¤�n��������v�¥��������¤�n��������v�¥��������¤�n��������v�¥�������� ����� ������
� ���} }}}� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���¥ ¥¥¥� ���| |||x xxx� ���� ���

��r ��r��r��r v����¤�¤¤ ¤¤��� ¤¤���¤¤���¤¤���� ������ ���������� ���l lll
��¦�����§8��̈�����©������ª

����X8� ����«
��¦�����X8��̈�����ª�����ª���

��X8� ����«
��¦����	X8��̈������������ª

�����X8� ����«
N�¬­�����̈����

­ ��

��G@���¦����®�G�X@ 
���� ̈�

��
��

�� 6�	� ��
��¦���X��§8��̈������ ����

���X8� ����«
�̄I�¦ G@@���­N̄°̄�GN�G

���±̄T��GN���²�@³
�́µ��

ª̄���X�³́I��
�G@@�N̄
°̄�9@G¶̄³I��Ī�

�̄°8@¶�TÍ±�±°̄�N
�©³@GÍ�̄�

100



�����������	�
���

����	����
����
�������	�������������������������� !"#��������$�� % �#�����&�!����������$$� %�� �!#����!���!������"�!�������'(����)��
�)
��
)����*��

��+�,�)��-
�.�/0/1������,�011�2��!#��!����% # �!#�#�������$$�'���$��#�3$� �!� !���&�������#�#�� !�4�����&���$3�!�(�5���$��!63�7 !"��� #�3��!#�����8��9�����$��!#�#������$��3������#�#�� !�4���$�����!������&���$3�!�������#��7#���8�3�����������&���$3�!��!���#������� ������:��� "!�"�������!�� !���#���%����:� 3$��&�������!& ��!3�!�:�3 � "����%� 3����%��!"��; !%��� !"�4'�3�7 !"�����%� &���#�������!�� !���4�!�����#9��!�����$����� �#�����%�#:���49�#�����" %�$�� % �#�#�����<��#���3 ! 3�3<�$��& ��������4=�%� &��'��##�##���!���#��������# !"��!���������#�#<��#�������#��!'�!���#������%�!!���4��3���� �� !�!� "�4��� !"�����#<��!��##8��� (������$$� %�� �!����$�� % �#� !��� #�5��3����7������$����%������#�����##��#����$��� %����� 3$����!%��$��& ��#���#���!"����#�!�������#�� %� !"������&������#%���<��'$������ #�� 4�� �!������&���$3�!�� !�����$��!�����:������  (��!'���&��#�� 3$�%�#������ !"�#��������# "! � %�!��'��!����3�!#���4�'������ "������4�!�� �#<����!��##�##����"� !#������$�� % �#� !��� #�5��3����7���7�!��#��������(���5�����% # �!6��7 !"��� #�3��!#8���%9��$$��& !"���&���$3�!��$��$�#��#�������%%����� ����!��$6��6�������&���$3�!��$��!�� ����������':�������9�����������������!������&�!����&���$3�!��$��!�$�� % �#<��������$�� % �#��� %������3�#�� 3$����!�����������3 ! !"������$$� %�� �!��������6��6����<�"��!� !"�$��3 ## �!��!��##8��� (������$$� %�� �!����$�� % �#� !��� #�5��3����7������$����%������#�����##��#����$��� %����� 3$����!%��$��& ��#���%��������#�!���������# !"�������&���$3�!��$��$�#��:������  (��!'���&��#�� 3$�%�#������ !"�#��������# "! � %�!��'��!����3�!#���4�'������ "������4�!�� �#<����!��##�##����"� !#������$�� % �#� !��� #�5��3����7���7�!��#��������(���
101



����������	
����
�	
�������������
��
��	��
�����������	
����
�����������������������������
�����
�����������������	��������	
�����	�����
����
	���������
�����������
�������������� ������������
��	��
����������	������
���
������!	"�
��������	���
������������
�����"�������
	�����	����
�	��
�����������
�������

������"�����
��	��
������������
���������#$���	
����
���	������
�����������������	�����������
������	�������%���
&���		������������		�
���
��������������
		���
	��"��������
��
������'������������������������������������	�������������������	������(����&�
�������
		"�
���
������
��
�����	�����
����
�������������	
"����
���
�������
���
�������������	
����
���
(����&�
����"��
����������	��
	���
�
�����
���������"�����	����
���������������
����	��������������
���	
����
���������
�����	���������������
�����������

��
�
�������
��������
����������
�
��)�����
�������
�������������&(����&����
�	��������
���
���
������
�����������	
��������
�����
��
�
��������������������
��������	���
��"����
����
����
	��������
���
���
���������	�����
�
����������������	
�������	��������!�
��������(����&���������������������
	����������������
�������
���
�������
���
��
�������
���
������
�����*��������	�������)���	����
�
�����
������������	�����
��&�
�����������	��
	��
��	������
�����
�������������!�(�
������&����
����	
������
��
����
�������	������
���
�������	��
�������������������
	���
�����		+����
�������
���
����
��
������
�����"������*�����
�
���������������(�
���������������
�������������
���������
�����������������������������������
	��"����	���������������"����������
�������	��������������,�$�-�������������
��
��	��
��������������
�����
�������
����+����
�
���������

��
���������	������
!��������
��������������������
�����
��	��
������.�����
���
�
��	��
��������
��������	"������������	"�
���������+����
�
���������

��
�������
��
	
�����'��
��������		��������������
���
���

������������
	�����
�"��
������	����
���������
�����
����������������

��
�������/01123�/212456�72809��90:�,�#;<,�$#����29=8>�?@#�<�A24:8=9BC�82DD=EDF:E�E2�C4CE0=:0G9F�HFIF92JDF:E�K��������������
��	
����
�
��	��
����������L�����	���		��
!��
����������
����
�����������������	��������������
��
�	���-���L�����	���		����!����+
�����	"������
��	��
�����������������������	���������
��
		�������
�	��������
	����������
��
�	������	��������������
�����������������������	���� 102



���������	
��
��	�


������������
�����������	����������
�������
����������
������������
������
����������������	����������	���	�����������������	��������
�����������������
����
	����
���
������
���������
����		�������������
�������
	���������	
�
�
����������
����	��
	���������
������
���
����������������	���������� 
�
�������!�"�	�
����������
������������	�����������
����������

�������������	�
������	���

	����	
����������
���
��������
�����������#���������������
�������
	��
����������		�����
�������$������
����������
����������������
��������������������
����
���	���
�����
����
��
	����������
������%���������������������
	
�����������������������
	��
������������������
	
���������������������������

�����
��
���������	
�
����������������	
���
������������

��
����������
����
���	���
�����
����
��
	����������
�������
���
�����		������������&����'�(�����������

��	�����������
������

��
����������
��
�
	������������
���������������
������������
��������������������
�����������
	
���
������)��
����������
������
	��*��
������+���������	�
������
	�������	���
�'������������������,�������'�-��	
�
	����
	
���
������*��
������+���������	�
������
	�������	���
�'�
��
	����������������
�������������������
	��������./0123�456�7�589:;1<;=0>�4>?>0/@A><:�BC1:>C1;�D�����������
����������"�	�
��������
����
�����
	��$-E�����"�	�����������$������
������������
	
�����
	��
��������

���������
���
�
����������
	������
��������������������������
���������������������
���	�
���
�������������
��������
���
�����		����������	��������������
��������
���
��������

��	��������������	
�����

�
���
�����&����'�F����
������������������������
����
�	����������������
��������	��������
���������
���������������������		���
�
�
����������
����	�	�
�����������
	���������������
�
�����������������������
	����������
�����������
����
������������
�����
������������	��
�����	
�
�
��,����'�F����
����������
����������������"��
	�����������������
�	������	������
������"��	�
�������������
����
�
������������	���G
������(�����
��������
�������H	���	
��,���	'�F����
����		���������	�����������
	������	
�
�
�������
��������	��������������
������������������������
����������
�����		���������	���	
�������I
��
����������������
�
�
���
��������	����,����'�F����
����������������������������������
���
����������	��������
�����
������������
������
����
������
���������������
�����������
��������
���	����
�
������
���������������������
����
�	���
������
�����	
����������
	������
��
���		��������������,
103



������������	
������
��	��
�	������
	��������	��	
���
������	����������	
������
�	����
����
	����������
	����
��
���
����	�����������
�����	
����������������������
����
	������������
����
����
����������
����������������
����������
�
	���	
����������
��
����
������������
����
�������
�
����
���	���
	��	
��
�������
���������
�����������������
������
�������
������	��	
�������
����������
�����
������
��
�	
�
��
�������������������
�
	���	
����������
��
����
������	��	��
�	����
������	��
�	������	���
��
	
���������
��
���	�
��
�������	�	�
�����
	�����
��
��������
������	���	������	������� ��!��	�	
������
���	�������
��	
�
������
���	�
��
����
	�����
����
�����	�
����"���
��
	
��������
��������	
��
��
�����
�
����
������
����	�	�
��������
���#	
�����
��
����	�������
�����
��$�	��	
���������	�
��������������������	
������
�	
���������������
�����
��
	�����
������
�����������
��������
����
�������������
	�"��������
��
	
��������
���
����������������
����
��
�����
���
��
���������	���
	���
�	
�
��
��	
����	
����
	�������������
�����	
�����	
�����
�������%��������
���������������	������	���%&'(���)��
����������	��
������
��
�����������
���
���
����������
	��
	����

����������������������	���	���������������������
���	�����
�
	���������
����������	�����
���������*��������
��� ���	�����������

��	������
�(���+,-./0�123�4�156.78�9������������
����������������	���:���	������	�
����	����	��������
�������
���	�
�������
���	�����	�
�
��������(�%��	�
���	����������	�	����������	����
�����

	
������	���	�
�����������
��
����������
��
������������
��������
��
����
�������������
����
	��	�����������	����
��	�����
������	
����	
����

��
�	
����������"	
��	
��������
���������
�	�;��<
��
�=
�
���
����
��&�
�����(��
�����������������
��
��������
�����������>�������=
���
�����	����
�����
������	������
��
����
���
��
����������
����
���������� �	
	
��
���
����
�	
�
��
�����"	
��	
��������
��
�����
��&�������
��
�����

	
��%�����
���
104



������������	
��������
������
��
����	�����
�	������������������
�	������������������
��	���������������������
��������������
������������������������
�������������������������������������������������	���������	�������������
��������������������������������������������	�
������������
����	�����	����
�����������������
�	������������������	�
��������������������
�	���������������������	������������������������
���������
����
��������������
���		���������	��������������
�����������������	���������������������������	�����	�����
���
��������
������	�������������������
������	�������������������
��������	��������������	��������������
����������������������	������	��������
�	���������������������������	����	������������������������� 	��	�������������������������������	���
�	���	���������	����������
���
�
�����	�	�!��	������������������������
�������������	����������
�	����	����
��"�
������������!���������������������������������	��������	��	���������
���	���������������	�����
�	�
�	����������������#��������
�����������
���
�	����	�����
��������������������	�����������������	��	������������
�	��������������������
���	�������������������	��
���������	����
�������	�����
����	�����
��������������������$�%
�	����������	�������	�������
���
�	����	����������	��������������������
��	�	�
������������
����������������	�������������������������&���	��������������
����	���������
�������	������
����
��������������������������
������������������������������'���	��	������������	���
�	���
���������	��	���������
���	�&���������
�	�������������	������������������&����
���������"���	���
�����
���������������
�������������������������������	���������	�������������������
��������������������'����	����(�����������)	�������(����������������	��	�������	������������������������������������
����������������������
���������
������	��	������������	�����������	�����������������	���*�������	���������
��
��+��������#��������������
���	���������
105



�����������	
�	��
�������
����������
��
�������	�

�	�����
�����	���������������
��	����������������
����������	�
������	�����
�	���
	��
�������


����������������������	
	�������������	����������	����
�������� !�"#$�%�&'()*�"�+,*,��-�.+�/�0�*�1  +0'/��-�2".1,3�'-4�/5*�6+74�8�,��-��9�:;*���-),�<����
�

���������
���	�	
	���������

	��
��������
����	���	���
������������	������
��������
�
�	����
�	�
���������	���=�����>������	��
���	

������������
������	�	�������?������@���������
�

��������
���������������������
��
�

���������A��
	������	
�����
	������B	���	���������������
	�������
�	����	�	���	��������������@������	��C��
	���D��B���E

�

�����������F������	

�����������������
��	���������������
	����	�
�����	��������	������	����������	�
���
���	�

���	�����
����������	��������	
�������������	
���������������F��������
�
����
�����������
�
��������������������������������	
�	����������
�������	��������������G���
�����������������������
��	�����
��	����H
���������B	���������F��������
���	������
���
	�����
���
��������	�
��	

����������

����
���	�	����������
�
	���������	
��	������	���������
��B�����	����������	���
�����������F��������
�
����
�����
�������	��������	����
���B	����������
�������E��A�����
�	���
��
��������
�����	
�����	������������
��������������
��������
	����	�
��������
�
�������I�����������	���
�����	
�����	������������

	�
��������F�����	
����A���������

������������
	����	�
���	��������������������������������������	
�	������	��F��������
�
����
������
��������������H����������	������
	�	
����
�
���
�
�	���	������
�

����
��	�
�����������	�������
	����������J��F���
	���	
��	��	����
��������������
	������
���������������	������	
	�	�
�
106



�����������	�
��	��

������������	���������
�
��	��������������
��������
�������

������������

��
��������������� �!"#�$�%��&''�(��)*��+�,-'�.,+��/&,�'/.�&'�01��������
�
��	��
��
���
������
����2��
�������	���������3�������	���	�
���������������3��	��3������	��	������������
��	��3��
������	������
�����������
�������	�������	��������
�
��	�������
�������������4������	���������������
�����	���	�
����	������

�
���	���
�������������
�������������
���3����������	�����5�����������	���������	���������	�����
���������	�����������������������
��
���
��	����������������	���

����	�����������������������	�������������	��3��������


����
���������6��	��
���

����������������������

���	��������������	��������	������
�
��	��
��
���
�7�����1�������������	�����	���	�����	���8�����	����������������	�����������	��������	����
��	��3�����������	�����3��
�	��
������	��
��������	�������9����1��������
������	�����	������
�
��	��
��
���
��	���
����	��������
���	���
������9����1����5��������
��������

����	�
���������3��	�
���	����
2�	���	�����
�	�3��	��
�������	�������4�����
��2�	������������

��
������	���������
��2�	������������	������������
����	�������������
��3��	�
���	���
�������������
�������9����1����:�������	�����	;���������
��������������
��
������
�����	���

��
���������	��������<1�5������	�

�3��������������������4������	�������������������	��	��5�������������	�����
���������

�		�	���


������	��������
�7�����1��������	������������

����������	�
�����������	9��	�����1����5�2	��
��������

��	��������:����=��������>��
��	��?���
����	��@5����������	������������
��	��1��	�����������>�ABCC7<CCD�@>����������	������;������	�������
��	����	���������

��������������������	�������������
���
��

��;�6�������
�������1��������

��
������
107



���������������	�
����
���������������������������������������� ����!"����������������������#������������������$������!"�������%��&�����������$��� ����������������#���"�����������$��$��'�#���(�&$��)��*"�$����)���������##�����#�����$��$�����%��&���������������$��+���%��&�,"������������-"� ���+�.�,������)�"�����������/����0���������"������&��������&����#������1����������%��&���� ����2�&���������������������� ����"&$���$��������� ��2���������������������&������������ ����!"����/�3$�������)��&����%��&�������������#$�������$�"��� ��������������������������������2����������������#�������������������$���������#���������$���"�$����)��$����$����������������%��&���������������"���#����2��$��4���%��&�,"������������-"� ���4�#��� ������5����������"������$��������������������������6$������&������������������������%��&���������������� �������)��##���� �����������������������$���������#��������#$���#��������$����#�������/�-��������������$�"��� ��&������������#)�-7�8����������&�����9���������#)�:.;�8�����#����&9/����������<=>�
�<?@�A?�B�������B?�B����C�?�@�-����������������������������������������#�����#����"������������)� ���������������D����������������#�����*������$�����$�������������#�������$��������������)�������������������&�$�"��2�����������2�������#2����������������/�E����$���2����$���������������)������������������2����)��$�������������#���������������)�����#���&���������������������������� �����������/�
108


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Planning Application No. B20/2023/0464 175-177 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans
	Policy Appendix
	Extra Information Book

	8 Appeal Decision - 52 Paradise Street, Barrow-in-Furness
	Appeal Decision – 52 Paradise Street, Barrow in Furness
	Report Title: 
	Barrow in Furness Local Area Planning Committee
	Meeting:
	19th December 2023
	Meeting Date:
	Jennifer Dickinson
	Report Author:
	Lead Cabinet Member(s):
	Old Barrow Ward
	Wards Affected
	Public
	PUBLIC, PART EXEMPT OR FULLY EXEMPT
	Appendix A:  Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/23/3319147
	1.        Executive Summary
	2. Recommendation
	3. Information: the Rationale and Evidence
	5. Consultation Outcomes (with services, ward councillors & public consultation where required
	5.1 Not applicable
	6. Alternative Options Considered
	7. Financial Implications and risk
	8. Legal & Governance Implications
	9. Human Resources Implications
	9.1  Staff time spent on appeals is a cost resource to the Council.
	10. Equality & Diversity Implications (including the public sector equality duty, Armed Forces Families, Care Leavers and Health inequalities implications)
	10.1 Not applicable.  This report is for information only and these will have been considered by the decision-maker, as necessary.
	11. Background Information & Sources (used in preparation of this Report)
	PLAN_2022_0709_COMM_ Deferred Book 17-01-23.pdf (p.33-63)




